
i

East Hampshire District Council
Penns Place, Petersfield
Hampshire. GU31 4EX

Telephone 01730 266551
www.easthants.gov.uk

Winchester City Council
City Offices, Colebrook Street,

Winchester, Hampshire  SO23 9LJ
Telephone 01962 840 222

www.winchester.gov.uk

EHDC & WCC Joint Environmental Services Committee 
Agenda

Date: 29 November 2017

Time: 2.30 pm

Venue: Council Chamber, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX

Membership

Membership: Cllr Tony Costigan (Chairman) 
Cllr Jan Warwick (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors (EHDC) 
Cllr Deborah Brooks Jackson
Cllr Bill Mouland

Councillors (WCC) 
Cllr Caroline Brook
Cllr Lisa Griffiths

Deputy Members

Councillors (EHDC) 
Cllr Richard Millard

Councillors (WCC) 
Cllr Stephen Godfrey

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer

Date of Publication: Tuesday, 21 November 2017

Contact Officer: James Harris 01730 234098
Email:  james.harris@easthants.gov.uk

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/


ii

Pages

PART 1 (Items open for public attendance)

1 Apologies for Absence  

To receive and record any apologies for absence.

2 Chairman's Announcements  

To receive any announcements that the Chairman may wish to make 
for information.

3 Confirmation of Minutes  

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2017 and the 
extraordinary meetings held on 2 August 2017 and 26 October 2017.

4 Declarations of Interest  

To receive and record any declarations of interest from members 
present in respect of any of the various matters on the agenda for this 
meeting.

5 Contract Management Team Annual Report Year 6  

To inform the Committee of the performance of the joint environmental 
services contracts during the sixth year of operation.

FOR NOTING

1 - 60

6 Joint Environmental Services Committee 2018/19 Draft Budget 
Report  

The Committee will consider the draft  2018/19 JESC budget for 
approval.

FOR DECISION

61 - 66

PART 2 (Confidential Items - closed to the public)

None.



iii

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR ANY OF ITS 
REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER 
LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 
234073.

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend and observe the meetings. 
Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to make deputations on 
matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this procedure and for further 
information please get in touch with the contact officer for this agenda. 

Disabled Access

All meeting venues have full access and facilities for the disabled.

No Smoking Policy

All meeting venues operate a no smoking policy on all premises and grounds. 

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/




NON-EXEMPT          

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL & WINCHESTER CITY 
COUNCIL

EHDC & WCC Joint Environmental Services 
Committee

29 November 2017

JOINT ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE CONTRACTS – ANNUAL REPORT 
YEAR 6

Nicola Watts Environmental Services  Contract Manager (Contract 
Management Team)

For Decision

Portfolios:   Cllr Tony Costigan (EHDC, Commercial Contracts),
                      Cllr Jan Warwick(WCC, Environment, Health & Wellbeing)

Key Decision: No

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To inform the Joint Committee of the performance against the various joint 
environmental services contracts during the sixth year of operation October 2016 
– September 2017, to include the activity of the Contract Management Team in 
monitoring and managing this work.

2.0 Recommendations

The Joint Committee 

1. Note the content of this review of the 6th year of the contracted services

2. Questions invited for senior representatives from Biffa and Idverde on any 
areas of concern arising from the reports on the contract performance in year 
6

3. Delegate authority to the Head of Service to vary contract bin delivery 
timescales from 5 days to 10 days (7.12 of main report)



3.0 Detail

3.1 This report provides a summary of the sixth year of the three joint contracts, 
covering the contractors’ operational performance and developments within the 
Contract Management Team.   

3.2 The Contract Management Team summary of the year is attached as and each 
of the two principal contractors (Biffa and Idverde) have provided their own 
summary and reflection of the year as attached in Appendix D & E.. 
Representatives of those contractors will be at the meeting to answer questions 
on service development during 2016/17 and plans for future developments in 
2017/18.

3.3 This has been a challenging year in terms of contract performance with 
continued issues experienced with the Biffa contract which resulted in their 
attendance at JESC in September and November 2016 to answer queries about 
this issue. As a result Biffa put in place an Improvement Plan.

3.4 The introduction provides a summary of performance and general updates within 
CMT.

3.5 There have been a number of CMT developments this year, including changes to 
process and procedures.  

4.0 Implications 

4.1 Resources: The cost of the various services and that of the Contract 
Management Team are covered by approved revenue budgets at both councils, 
including all communications.

4.2 Legal: There are no legal implications arising from this report.

4.3 Strategy: The work of the CMT delivers services which help to meet a number of 
the aims of the corporate strategy including Financial Sustainability, 
Environmental Sustainability, Public Service Excellence and Creativity and 
Innovation.

4.4 Risks: The new General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) comes into force 
May 2018, and due to the complexities of the Contract Management Team set up 
and client/contractor interactions we need to ensure compliance.

4.5 Communications: The outcome of the options appraisal work in 2018 will need 
to be communicated to staff and residents effectively to ensure a consistent 
message is delivered.

Appendices



Appendix A - CMT Service Plan
Appendix B – Communications Strategy and Plan
Appendix C - CMT Annual Performance Dashboard
Appendix D – Idverde Annual Report
Appendix E -  Biffa Annual Report

Contact Officer: Nicola Watts
Job Title: Environmental Services Contract Manager (Contract 
Management Team)
Telephone: 01730 234283
E-Mail: Nicola.watts@easthants.gov.uk



Contract Management Team Annual Report 2016/17

1.0 Introduction

1.1 2016/17 has been another challenging year for the CMT with some considerable 
performance issues to be addressed particularly in relation to the Biffa contract. 
Following some concerns regarding the reliability of performance from IDV last 
year, there have been considerable improvements this year and performance is 
good. These are both addressed later in the report.

1.2 EHDC and WCC extended the Textiles Collection Contract for another 2 years, 
until 31st March 2019 with European Recycling Company (ERC), securing a 
continued rate of £250 per tonne. 

1.3 EHDC and WCC signed a new Hampshire County Council Agency Agreement, to 
run for another 2 years, from 1st April 2017 until 31st March 2019. The Agreement 
was for the Councils to provide services on behalf of HCC in return for a financial 
payment. 

1.4 The Environmental Service Contracts Options Appraisal Project has progressed 
well. This comprehensive project has been reported at JESC meetings 
throughout the year with a final decision scheduled for January 2018.

1.5 Income has performed well with markets and tonnages stable. The Garden waste 
service at EHDC has now reached maximum capacity with take up of the bin 
option increasing with many residents switching from sacks to this service. As a 
result forecasted income continues to be higher than expected. Over 
performance of the garden waste income at £417k was £117k above target in 
2016/17 and is forecast to exceed this in 2017/18. 

1.6 There are good to high levels of satisfaction with the Environmental Services. 
Essential Services Survey conducted in August 2016, showed 81% of 
households thought their waste collection service are good or excellent, and 77% 
with the recycling service. For street cleansing and grounds maintenance 
services satisfaction or no opinion levels ranged from 49% for flytipping up to 
77% for cleanliness of the roads.

1.7 The recycling rate for EHDC improved last financial year 2016/17 to 33.78% from 
32.73% in 2015/16. Although WCC’s recycling rate is higher it fell from 34.70% in 
2015/16, to 34.20% in 2016/17. 

1.8 The contamination rates have both increased, which follows a worrying trend for 
the whole of Hampshire. EHDC’s rate increased from 14.23% in 2015/16, to 
14.93% in 2016/17. WCC’s rate increased from 13.74% in 2015/16, to 14.59%. 



Despite this performance both authorities are still performing favourably 
compared to other authorities in Hampshire.

1.9 Staffing levels in 2016/17 contract year have been stable, with no post changes. 
The 1 year fixed term CMO position due to expire in January 2018 has been 
extended for a further year until January 2019. The Environmental Services 
Contract Manager, Nicola Watts went on maternity leave on 6th November 2017 
and it is envisaged she will return in September 2018. Carl Mathias will be taking 
on some of the high level duties whilst Sharon Watson will be taking on some 
additional responsibilities. Aspects of her role  will be backfilled by James Bevan 
in her team.

1.10 Absence levels for CMT are as below. The average absence rate is lower than 
the average for EHDC, and is an improvement from last year from 6.25 to 5.66 
days.

Financial Year EHDC Average CMT Average
2015/ 16 6.9 days per FTE 5.66 days per FTE

1.11 This sixth annual report considers the following aspects of the year which 
cumulatively have an impact upon contractor performance:

a) CMT Performance and Development
b) Policy and Performance
c) Contract monitoring data and reporting
d) Processes and procedures
e) Customer Service Centre
f) Health & Safety Performance
g) Contractor Performance

2.0 CMT Performance and Development

2.1 CMT engaged in a Personal and Team Developmental Away Day in May 2017, 
which was facilitated by external consultants. The Team found the day beneficial 
in both personal and team development and will support the team to work better 
together and drive results in the future.

2.2 CMT also engaged in a service planning day in June 2017 to develop a 
comprehensive Service Plan, in which a high level Vision has been 
produced as along with six key objectives and associated tasks. This new 
plan will be used in order to drive further progress within the team and 
contracts and will be built upon annually. The Plan can be found in 
Appendix B. 



2.3 A programme of Partnership Working began this year to support Biffa in overall 
service improvement. This included a comprehensive review of Biffa’s back office 
systems and work with CSC to align processes. The review identified over 30 
actions for Biffa, CMT and CSC to streamline and tighten processes to improve 
efficiency and accuracy of operations and complaint handling. It also included a 
series of workshops between Biffa/ CMT staff/ Admin and CSC to discuss 
operational issues and work more closely. This work is ongoing and will be 
completed next year. This work stream has been included in the new Service 
Plan progress of which will be reported to JESC.

2.4 A new look Communication Strategy and Plan has been developed based on the 
results of the Phase 1 ESCOAP Consultation. The current plan and progress to 
data is included in Appendix C.

2.5 CMT have successfully reached full capacity of 7500 properties on the EHDC 
garden waste service, This means that the service is hitting its maximum income 
level, however does mean that new customers will now be added to a waiting list 
before they can access the service. 
As of 20th November 2017:

 306 properties have asked to go on the waiting list
 129 of them have been called back to join the service.
 94 have signed up
 29 have not responded
 6 said they did not wish to sign up at this time.

Currently CMT are investigating options to expand the service to another 
collection round, and progress will be reported to JESC once known. 

2.6 CMT officers received new smart phones this year, which enables better 
capability whilst on site, better access to the internet and downloading of 
photographs quickly. The change has been positive, although more functionality 
via mobile working is required to support more efficiency within the team.

3.0 Contract monitoring data & reporting

 
3.1 This year the CMT and the contractor dealt with a total of 27,470 lagan cases of 

which of these, 15,782 were Biffa cases, and 4310 cases were Idverde.

2.3 CMT also dealt with 7388 cases relating to garden waste renewals or new 
applications. In addition 1643 clinical waste cases and in 429 bulky waste cases 
were also dealt with by the team.



2.5 The following table summarises how these figures compare with the previous 2 
years of the contract: 

Contract Year - October to September 
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Biffa Service Requests 7139 11762 15782
Biffa Rectifications Notices 305 190 241
Biffa Default Notices 320 124 285
Idverde  Service Requests 4039 4091 4310
Idverde Rectification Notices 327 228 69
Idverde Default Notices 98 254 55
Garden Waste Licence 
Renewals and New Application 
cases.

6828 7389 7378

2.6 This data demonstrates the robust approach taken to contract management this 
year. In particular the reduction in rectifications on Idverde, this is a reflection of 
the reduced complaints on grass cutting this year and an improved scheduling of 
work, alongside the introduction of reactive hit squads.

2.7 Appendix C summarises the data in the Annual Performance Dashboard.

3. Processes and procedures

3.1 Contract Management Processes - The internal audit conducted by Southern 
Internal Audit Partnership in August 2015 highlighted thirteen actions for 
improvement. There was only 1 action remaining for this year which was 
presented to JESC in January 2017 as below, which is now complete.

Action Status
Formalise risk management arrangements, 
including production of a Risk Management Plan.

Complete

3.2 The CMT have fully implemented a Monthly Performance Monitoring dashboard 
reporting on income and expenditure and contract/ project performance this year. 
The format of the dashboard will be used this year to report the Annual 
Performance, and this can be found in Appendix C.

3.3 The CMT this year completed a full Business Continuity Plan for the team, for the 
first time. The plan sets out how the team will respond in a number of scenarios 
or emergency situations and links in with all Contractors plans. The team tested 
the plan in September to a satisfactory level.



3.4 All CMT risk assessments have been reviewed and updated this year, combining 
the 3 sub-teams into 1 assessment for the whole of CMT. All staff have read, 
understood and signed the risk assessment which is now stored in a central 
location.

3.5 The Lone Working Procedure has been updated this year to ensure that it is 
specifically relevant to CMT working practices, and helping to ensure the safety 
of all staff working on the joint contracts.

3.6 A new corporate procedure has been adopted by the team, with the ‘Contact with 
Caution’ list this year to ensure compliance with the DPA. This includes not 
sharing this information with Contractors where it is not relevant and only to 
those team members who would be directly affected (i.e. area based CMOs).

3.7 There is now a new process in place for recharging clients at WCC (i.e. Leisure, 
Housing, Car Parks), for specific works under the IDV Contract. This is now 
based on a rolling monthly updated Bill of Quantities and ensure as accurate as 
possible charging to each client. Although only one payment is made between 
EHDC and WCC, CMT work closely with WCC finance to ensure the bill is further 
split correctly between internal WCC departments.

3.8 The CMT have made some improvement to their back office systems and a new 
cloud based document filing system, called Kahootz in now in place. This allows 
the team to share documents more easily as well as help with version control. 
This system will allow the CMT to manage version control on key contract 
documents more effectively and will also allow a consistent and controlled view 
of these documents, as well as other standard documents across the whole 
team. 

3.9 Although Councils do not have a duty to investigate or clear flytips on private 
land, CMT have introduced a new procedure for dealing with this issue. CMOs 
are now required, under the new procedure to conduct a Land Search and write 
to the private land owner to inform them of the flytip and ask them to remove it. 
Although this cannot be enforced in anyway, it has been successful on some 
occasion this year.

3.10 A new system called Microsoft dynamics was introduced this year in March/ April 
2017 for FOIs and complaints across EHDC only. This has streamlined the 
process and allows CMT to manage and track these more effectively and ensure 
they are dealt with within the Councils corporate and statutory response 
timeframes. 

3.11 CMT are in the final stages of the full litter bin audit across WCC, which records 
on GIS an exact location, size and type of bin, frequency of collection and a 
photograph. A similar audit is to be completed by the end of 2017 in EHDC, and 



ensures data is up to date and helping to deal with requests and complaints more 
effectively.

3.12 A review of street cleansing schedules has taken place with most roads plotted 
on GIS for the frequency of cleansing. This will continue into 2018 along with an 
audit of car parks to take place next.

 

4. Customer Service Centre

4.1 For the period 1 Sept 16 to 31 Oct 17, CSC dealt with 58,326 service requests. 
These were mainly through telephone calls. There were 7122 online requests for 
the same period. 47.4% of the requests were for EHDC, 51.7% were for WCC 
and 0.86% was out of area calls.

4.2 This represents a 48% increase in the number of calls received and a 145% 
increase from 2015/16. The majority of calls (30%) were for garden waste 
collections with 13% were for missed collections. 

4.3 There were just over 4410 calls relating to clinical waste collections and 
approximately 3272 relating to fly tipping.

4.4 The Winchester CSC has been working on a number of projects to improve the 
customer experience. CSC had provided detailed monthly analysis of the service 
requests which CMT used to inform discussions with the contractors. CSC has 
been working closely with CMT to provide real time feedback on any trends as 
they arise, for example identifying there was a problem with new bin deliveries 
due to a high volume of repeat calls.

 4.5 The CSC continues to manage customer’s expectations. These calls can often 
be difficult conversations for example the returns policy, calendar delivery, 
missed collections. CSC has actively worked with the contractors and CMT to 
improve service delivery and to resolve issues:

a. Formulating and agreeing a new process to for new bin deliveries. Streamlined 
the new process, trailed and maintain communications between team. New and 
replacement bins are now being delivered within the agreed target dates.

b. Assessing and taking remedial steps to ensure that procedures were compliant 
with legislations.

c. Formulating and organising appropriate messages to be published on our 
webpages and Twitter to inform and manage customer’s expectations.

4.6 CMT completed a programme of shadowing during November 2016. This work 
allowed for a collaborative approach to customer service, consistency across all 
teams in dealing with enquiries and development of service and working 
relationships. (CMT/ WCC and EHDC) 



5.      Health & Safety Performance

5.1 The CMT have continued to monitor the Health and Safety Performance of all 3 
contractors including data relating to accidents, near misses and hazard reports. 
The team also ensure method statements on particular aspects requiring more 
detailed attention such as risk assessments and accident investigations are 
maintained. 

5.2 There have been no issues in relation to the Public Conveniences cleaning 
contract because of the relatively low risk of this activity.  Tabulated performance 
is therefore not included in this report as it shows zero incidents.

5.3 The following is a summary of the year for the other 2 contracts; 

Biffa – A breakdown of the categories is shown below;

BIFFA
Category Number of 

incidents
Impact 1

Slip, trip and fall 7

Vehicle/plant 1

Manual Handling 0

Needle stick and cuts 0

Near miss reports 75

Veolia Site Non Compliance 6

5.4 Veolia site rules at tipping sites were breached on six occasions in this contract 
year. Again this year and in response to breaches all staff provided with a copy of 
Veolia site rules and reminded that they must adhere to these; this has continued 
through this period. 

5.5 Biffa are continuing to raise a number of hazard reports in relation to overgrown 
vegetation, pot holes and cars parking making access difficult to  collection 
points. These are being actioned by the CMO’s and Biffa in order to ensure that 
only those situations of sufficient seriousness receive remedial action. Any issues 
relating to HCC are logged with them for rectification.  



5.6 Last year we reported that there was a noise complaint relating to activity taking 
place at the Winchester depot, which was in contravention of Planning 
permission granted at the site. The CMT have continued to work with Biffa to 
minimise the impact and remind staff of the requirements and to date there has 
been no further complaints.

5.7 During 2016 the HSE carried out national intervention visits on safety in relation 
to refuse and recycling collections to each local authority because of the known 
risk from this activity. This year it has been announced that the HSE will be 
carrying out further audits within the industry, but these will not be pre-arranged 
in advance with councils or contractors. 

5.8 This CMT annual H&S inspection of the EHDC/WCC joint contract will be carried 
out at the Petersfield and Winchester depots during autumn 2017.  Results from 
these internal audits should be available during December 2017.

5.9 East Hampshire Health & Safety advisor continues to work through the County 
CASH (Common Approach to Safety & Health) group with both Biffa and the 
Health & Safety Executive (HSE) to reduce the affects of noise around kerbside 
glass collections.

5.10 Last year we advised that a working group would be established to deal with 
members of the public driving on pavements to get past collection vehicles whilst 
stationary to empty containers.  The group consisted of Officers from across the 
County, Biffa, and later by the Police. As a result a procedure for dealing with, 
and reporting incidents to the Police was developed, which is fully endorsed and 
supported by the Police. There have been no reported incidents during this 
period.

5.11 CMT has worked closely with HCC to support Biffa this year to develop and 
publicise the Driving Recklessly on Pavements (DROPs) campaign. The 
campaign serves to warn drivers of the hazards of driving recklessly to get 
around slow moving waste vehicles. HCC have supported the campaign with 
£500 towards  safety messaging on crew hi-vis, and Biffa covering the cost of the 
hi-vis. CMT will also put out some of the key messaging on social media to 
support this further once the hi-vis are ready for roll out.

5.12 Idverde -.A breakdown of the categories is shown below;
Category Number of incidents

Near Miss Reports 87

Minor Accidents 6

No of over 7 day injuries 2



No of major injuries 0

5.13 There has been no CASH non compliance notices issued in relation to this 
contract.

5.14 Work continues through the Council’s Health & Safety Advisors with Idverde and 
the HSE both locally and nationally looking at the issue of highway safety when 
carrying out street cleansing and grounds maintenance. 

5.15 There are no plans for HSE interventions in relation to this contract in the near 
future but the CMT will be carrying out its own Health and Safety audit of the 
contractor as detailed in 5.8.

6.0 Year 6 Contractor Performance – Idverde (IDV)

6.1 Year 6 has been generally a successful year with an overall improvement to 
services and reduction in the number of cases received, by 571, from 4881 to 
4310 this year. The following provides an overview of the last contract year.

6.2 IT System ‘Acorn’ - Idverde’s (IDV) programming software Acorn, has been fully 
implemented this year to include grounds maintenance, as well as sweeping and 
littering. Again there have been some teething issues in rolling out the 
programme, with continuous improvement throughout the year, and a reboot 
required. There are some minor issues still to resolve, but overall is an 
improvement. CMT now have access to a dashboard view and historical data can 
be viewed for up to 15 days post work, which should rise to 30 days in the near 
future. This allows CMT check more accurately when works have been 
completed when dealing with service complaints.

6.3 Systems Analyst - IDV invested in a new ‘Systems Analyst’ to support the new 
Acorn system and help with the roll out issues. This post has proved successful 
and support positive service improvement this year.

6.4 PQMS (Performance Quality Monitoring System) – IDV adopted a new 
module as part of improvements to the Acorn system. The PQMS allows IDV to 
carry out random proactive inspections which are ‘scored’ and that can then be 
used to measure overall contract performance and improvement. The inspections 
are planned to be expanded to joint monitoring with CMOs in CMT, so scoring 
can be calibrated across all teams and a partnership approach can be taken to 
service improvement.

6.5 Hitsquads - It has been a successful first full year of utilising the hit squads for 
dealing with litter and green (vegetation) issues on the network, outside of the 



current contract, and allows increased flexibility and responsiveness to these 
issues. The litter hit Squad has now been incorporated into the main contract this 
year and been successful in reducing litter complaints. The leafing hitsquad 
trialled last year is now to be kept as permanent addition, but has not yet been 
varied into the main contract, however has also proven successful. A review of 
both the leafing and green hitsquad is required in terms of providing added value 
and in splitting costs across the relevant clients. 

6.6 High Profile Shrub Beds – In general this service has performed well this year 
with no significant problems. 

6.8 Standard Shrub Beds – In general this service has performed well this year with 
no significant problems.

6.9 Weeds & Moss removal – weed and moss treatment programme worked well 
this year, and CMT/ IDV are looking at increasing this programme to more sites 
including some sports grounds and hotspots. However it should be highlighted 
that there is a major risk to this service in the future pending the future legislation 
change that may ban the use of Glyphosate weed killer. It is expected that more 
information will be available next year, however the impact on the control of 
weeds in the future will be compromised and alternative solution will need to be 
sought. 

6.10 Grass Cutting – following a number of improvements last year, including a 
dedicated mechanic and purchase of mowers the service has performed well with 
no significant, issues. There have been some minor issues in high frequency cut 
areas which have been managed through the contract. The Acorn re-
programming for grass cutting has work well this year ensuring that grass is cut 
Parish by Parish (reducing complaints from public).

6.11 Wildflower Areas - A pilot scheme for modifying grass areas to wildflower areas 
was agreed in 2 areas in Winchester; Joyce Gardens and St Giles Hill. The areas 
will be prepared in October 2017 and success assessed during the next year 
including costs.. Wildflowers provide an increased aesthetics and promote 
increased biodiversity.

6.12 Fence lines – The frequency of the cutting of fence lines has been identified as 
an issue this year, which are only due for one cut per season.  It is felt that this is 
insufficient in terms of customer expectation as it leads to complaints. A proposal 
to change this to twice yearly cuts has been tested this year with the use of the 
Hit Squads. Following a successful trial in problem areas, options will be 
identified and the proposal will be progressed formally.  

6.9 Hedges – a longer window for scheduled hedge cutting work was implemented 
for the summer cut last year, which proved successful on the whole, with limited 
complaints. This has been supported by the Ecology Officer at WCC in order to 



avoid nesting season in July. As a result, this has continued this year, with some 
adjustments made, with a first cut over August, September and October, with a 
second cut planned after Christmas. IDV have prioritised hedges that require 
immediate attention or hitsquads have been used if required/ urgent. A 
permanent variation is being considered with leisure, as part of a review.

6.10 Leaf Clearance Programme – the priority roads list proved successful this year 
over winter 2016/17. CMOs compiled a list based on their local knowledge and 
feedback from residents and members. This meant the complaints were more 
manageable, and it was easier to monitor those roads identified. The priority list 
will be implemented again this coming year 2017/18. The priority roads are those 
areas deemed to require special attention because of the degree of leaf fall and 
high profile nature. All areas do receive cleansing but this will be as part of the 
routine Street sweeping in line with the contract requirements. 

6.11 Leafing Hitsquad - The leafing hit squad worked well this year and will be 
provided again this year. The squad acts as a rapid response unit to deal with 
issues that arise outside of routine leaf removal activities such as blocked gullies 
or unsafe high profile areas. The cleansing hit squad will be used this year as 
supplementary resource.

6.12 Litter bin emptying – Overall the service provision this year was good, with 
ongoing frequency reviews. IDV also now ensure all new vehicles are fitted with 
bin lifting equipment to improve efficiency.

New bins were introduced in laybys on the A31, Morestead Road and the A3 this 
year to help reduce litter.

Bins were provided at 3 events in EHDC this year and 8 in WCC. There was 
increased frequency and provision of 1100l/ 240l bins and litter picking which 
proved successful.

CMT are conducting a comprehensive audit this year in WCC, and EHDC will be 
completed by December 2017. Data has been collected on bin sizes and 
locations, building a complete database in GIS managed by CMT. Litter bins 
were also replaced in WCC city centre, and a refurbishment programme is to be 
expanded this year.

6.13 Dog waste bin emptying - there have been no significant issues with dog bin 
emptying this year. A review was conducted in partnership with the WCC client to 
review charging between WCC and Parish Councils and an option is being 
considered of adding them to the IDV contract by relocating to highway land; or 
passing responsibility back to Parish to manage.



6.14 Litter and Detritus removal – 

6.14.1 Rural lanes - litter picking and detritus removal is still an issue. There have been 
issues with traffic management on blind bends, and access for large vehicles in 
narrow lanes. Generally this work has been completed by hitsquads and 
managed using temporary ‘stop go boards’.  The tractor and brush (sweeper) has 
been ineffective and some roads have not been completed at all. Although this is 
scheduled for once a year it has generated few complaints. Plans are in place 
next year to target high risk areas using a HGV sweeper and tractor and bucket 
where possible by reallocating existing budget.

6.14.2 Main roads – Analysis of the previous years issues has been used to allocate 
litter removal on mains roads to a rota on an 8 week cycle for the littering picking 
hitsquad in the Winchester district. This has proven successful this year. A 
similar rota is being formalised for East Hampshire.

6.14.3 High speed roads - The use of hitsquads on verges on high speed roads (A31, 
A32) for litter picking is new this year and has been successful. This is in 
response to a move by HCC from 2 to 1 cut, and associated impact on the 
Councils to litter pick. 

6.14.4 Trunk roads - have been generally successful with fewer complaints and no 
changes made to the service. It is likely this is due to a reduction in the grass 
cutting frequency by Highways England, which is exposing less litter. (A3, A34, 
A303) 2 to 1. 

6.15 CMO Lead Roles - Implementation of CMO ‘lead roles’ for IDV has ensured a 
regular and first point of contact for stakeholders, which has helped to  improve 
communications internally within the Councils.

6.16 Hampshire County Council Highways Contract - HCC appointed a new 
contractor Skanska in August 2017 to carry out their Highways functions. CMT 
are looking to build a new relationship with both HCC and Skanska and meet 
quarterly to discuss and establish continued joint working. 

7. Year 6 Contractor Performance – Biffa Municipal Ltd

7.1 SPF Performance - From September to October 2016/17 there have again 
continued to been significant problems with repeat missed bin collections, 
assisted collections, bin deliveries and accurate recording on spring board which 
have resulted in a significant number of rectification and default notices being 
served. As a result Biffa failed the Strategic Performance Framework (SPF) 
targets in some months, as outlined in Appendix C. Biffa were required to attend 
the JESC meeting in September 2016 and then subsequently in November 2016 



of this Contract year to answer questions about performance and confirm what 
action was being taken to improve performance. 

7.1.1 Improvement Plan – A satisfactory Improvement Plan was received and actions 
directly correlate and deal with the failures experienced. There was some 
improvement in performance for October, this was not sustained and there has 
been little improvement in performance over the course of the year. In particular 
staff issues, a national shortage of drivers and retention of staff have been a 
challenge, even though recruitment has been successful. The quality of agency 
staff has not been of an acceptable Contract standard. The Biffa Contract 
Manager was successful, in the summer in changing the Agency used and this 
made some improvement, although issues still exist. 

7.2 Partnership Work – As a result of continued service issues this year CMT have 
worked to support Biffa in a number of activities to help support improvement. 
This includes a programme of Partnership Working, which involved a workshop 
with CMOs and supervisors to review how things could be differently to support 
service improvements. As a result CMT re-introduced fortnightly meetings with 
CMOs and supervisors over the summer, which have proved productive and 
resolved some longer term issues. However these do not always happen if 
supervisors are unavailable due to driver shortages. A number of other 
procedures were introduced including use of a hotspot list for repeat issues and 
joint and proactive monitoring for example. Plans are to roll the workshop out to 
all CMOs and back office staff to ensure all aspects are reviewed for continuous 
improvement.

7.3 Back Office Review – CMT also supported Biffa in a review of back office 
activities. The Projects and Performance Manager spent a day in Biffa’s back 
office observing the administrative activities and noted 33 actions, relating to 
Biffa, CMT and CSC. These actions are still being worked on and it is envisaged 
that as a result of actions these activities will create operational efficiencies and a 
better customer experience for the public.

7.4 Refuse and Recycling Service (AWC) – There have been no whole missed 
roads experienced with this service this year, however there have been 
significant issues with repeat missed individual collections in particular for remote 
properties, which can be difficult to find. CMT have introduced a hotspot list this 
year which is monitored by CMOs and supervisors. However this can fail when 
contract supervisors are pulled away from duties due to staff issues. Supers are 
regularly required to work on rounds as drivers and so this issue has persisted 
throughout the year. 

7.5 Garden waste - The number of whole missed roads for this service have been 
high again this year in, particularly over the summer months when garden waste 
tonnage is heavy. This is due to the high volume of work across the service 
which impacts both Districts and results in work being transferred to the next day, 



leading to a knock affect for the rest of that particular week. In WCC this is 
exacerbated by the number of properties placing out additional sacks, which has 
occurred due to historical issuing of replacement bags and not record of which 
residents have purchased additional bags. Joint work to tackle this issue is 
underway between Biffa and CMT.

In WCC, where crews visit every street, less visible properties tend to get missed 
where crews are not checking properly. This is less of an issue in EHDC where 
crews have a specific list of properties signed up to the service.

Longer term the rounds will need to be rebalanced to even the work over the 
week, which would be fixed if Councils agreed to rounds rescheduling. Otherwise 
some more minimal rebalancing will be required. 

7.6 Kerbside Glass (EHDC) – This service has performed well this year; missed 
collections and complaints are low, and no missed roads have been reported.

7.7 Recycling Bring sites – There have been minimal issues and complaints this 
year, following successful replacement of igloo banks last year. All teething 
problems have now been ironed out and the service is running as expected.

7.8 Bulky Waste Service – In this period Biffa have made 405 subsidised 
collections and the majority of these were made within contract timescales. 
Overall the service has generated very few complaints this year, indicating that 
the service is working well in both districts.

CMT have also adopted a new process for Bulky Waste collections that ensure 
compliance with the Data Protection Act (DPA). Previously customers calling 
CSC to purchase bins were being transferred to Biffa where payment details 
were being taken, whilst the call was still being recorded. This practice has now 
stopped and Biffa now call the customer back to prevent card details being 
recorded.

7.9 Clinical Waste – There have been minimal issues this year, with a low number 
of complaints and missed collections, as a result of a member of staff being 
retrained and overall improvement to the service.

7.10 Assisted Collections – There has been no improvement this year in the number 
of missed assisted collections. This is due to continued lack of use of 
springboard and high turnover of staff that are inexperienced in using the system.

7.11 Replacement bins – this year has continued to see a marked increase in the 
number of requests for replacement bins which has contributed to the SPF 
failures. As a result many customers have had to wait much longer than the 
contractual 5 day delivery timeframe. CMT investigated disposals points via HCC 
during the summer as to whether there was an increase in tipped bins but there 



is no substantiated evidence to suggest this is the case. CMT have now asked 
Biffa to investigate why it is so high at around 200 a month. Further discussions 
are to take place.

7.12 Bin delivery process – to improve efficiency of the service and tackle the 
increase in deliveries and timeframes, CMT, CSC and Biffa started a trial at the 
beginning of Oct by moving to zonal deliveries, where all bins are delivered in a 
particular geographical zone each day, instead of all across the Districts on any 
day. This enables the customer to be given a delivery date, and under the new 
arrangement no bin will be outstanding after 9 days. The trial therefore increases 
efficiency and the number of bins that can be delivered each day dramatically, 
and is currently proving successful. Once CMT are satisfied it delivers improved 
performance and reduction in complaints then it is recommended this is adopted 
as a permanent change to the contract. JESC are asked to delegate this decision 
to the Head of Service. 

As part of the above zonal delivery changes, CMT have also reviewed the 
process to ensure it complies with the Data Protection Act (this will need to be 
further reviewed to comply with GDPR) and to ensure calls are not recorded that 
are taking payment details for bins. 

Biffa has also reviewed the back office procedure so that staffs are challenging 
replacement bin orders by asking customers to verify that the bin is lost or stolen, 
via a set of screening questions. Until Biffa are able to adequately use 
Springboard and crews record genuine losses or damage that can be reported 
back to CMT for action, then the number of bins Biffa are required to delivered is 
unlikely to reduce.

7.13 Unauthorised container project – there has been a delay to tackling this issue 
this year as a result of the inconsistent use of springboard by crews and lack of 
accurate records in order to correctly collect legitimate additional garden waste 
containers. Biffa state they are unable to progress with tackling this issue without 
rounds rescheduling happening first. This is also the case for recycling and 
refuse containers.

7.14 Contamination – CMT and Biffa are unable to progress with tackling 
contamination due to the ongoing staffing and related service issues experienced 
on the contract, which results in staff not having the time or experience to 
adequately check bins and record information on springboard. Biffa state that 
rounds rescheduling is required before progression with this project. The 
outcome however is that the contamination rate is likely to remain the same or 
continue to decline. This will be a main focus for the CMT going into 2018.

7.15 Collection Calendars and Leaflet – the preparation of the 2016/17 calendars 
was completed late last year. The delivery should have been completed on 1st 
November,  but did not start until 17th October, and wasn’t completed by 25th 



November. There were 287 complaints which were requests for calendars as a 
result. There were also two printing errors on calendar 9 which Biffa 
corrected with a bin sticker. 

A leaflet communicating what the recycling and some other services 
accompanied the 2016/17 calendar, which was delivered by Biffa and not extra 
cost to the councils, which also contributed to the delay in meeting the delivery 
timescale.

Calendars for 2017/18 are late going out this year.  

7.16 Round reorganisation – A comprehensive project plan has been developed for 
the first time this year, in partnership with Biffa, CMT and EHDC GIS support. 
The implementation of rounds rescheduling will bring a host of service related 
improvements and efficiencies. The outcome is currently pending the outcome of 
the options appraisal.

7.17 Staff changes – An additional member of staff was brought in by Biffa at the 
beginning of the year as a temporary support measure. This member of staff has 
now been retained and means there are now 5 supervisors, as set out in the 
contract. Although it falls slightly out of the contract year of 2016/17 we have as 
of 9th November 2017 been advised that Wayne Goodwin has left his position as 
the Contracts Manager at Biffa. 

8. Year 6 Performance of Contractors – Public Conveniences Cleaning

8.1 Wettons have provided a good level of service across both districts this contract 
year. 

8.2 Following the transfer of the client function for the WCC conveniences to Richard 
Hein (Head of Parking Services and CCTV, WCC) in October 2016 a number of 
sites have had some investment in the fittings which has helped with the cleaning 
work and improved the facilities. 

8.3 Additional jetting equipment has been purchased for the monthly deep cleans at 
Winchester sites, which has improved the condition of the floor surfaces.

8.4 Wettons have so far been unable to implement the ‘extranet’ quality reporting 
system for WCC and EHDC monitoring officers to use. An initial trial has required 
further development and a relaunch is expected in early 2018.

8.5 The contract management of Wettons has been passed to Sharon Watson the 
Projects and Performance Manager for this next contract year, in order to support 
a rebalance of workload in light of maternity cover and additional requirements 
for existing contract managers for HR and Finance.



9. Year 7 CMT Key Actions for coming year

9.1 There are a number of key work streams requiring CMT input this penultimate 
year of the contract running from 1st October 2017 to 30th September 2018, as 
set out below.

9.2 Contract options appraisal – A new timetable has now been agreed with a final 
JESC decision on 10th January and Cabinet decisions for both Authorities in 
February 2018.

9.3 Communications Strategy and Plan – This plan now updates and replaces the 
Waste minimisation plan as found in Appendix C. The focus of the new strategy 
and plan includes the following;

a) Increasing the capture and quality of recyclables
b) Reducing contamination of recyclables
c) Reducing household waste
d) Litter reduction and flytipping

Progress will be reported back to JESC in 6 months time (May 2018).

9.4 Service Planning – Service planning day arranged for April 2018 to review the 
current plan and update to drive service performance and improvement.

9.5 Team Development – Continued focus on team development to support 
continuous improvement and high performance of the team, with an Away Day 
planned in May 2018.

9.6 General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) changes – implementation of 
the changes to ensure compliance within the CMT and its Contracts.

9.7 Mobile Working Trial – The team will be trialling a tablet, to record the baseline 
checks and record proactive inspection schedule, with a view to make the team 
more efficient and produce more real time data that can be used effectively in 
contract management. 

9.8 Insofar as the main contracted services are concerned there are a number of 
likely  service changes 

9.9 Biffa  - the key focus for this contract year will be the following;

 Improvement Plan - Focus on Service Improvement and implementation 
of the Plan, with a focus on improving workforce issues.



 Partnership Working – Continue programme to support Improvement 
Plan and work in partnership to resolve issues.

 Back Office Review – continue programme to support service 
improvement and customer service levels.

 Unauthorised Containers – CMT to refresh properties that are eligible for 
assisted and clinical collections, as well and multi bin properties. 

 Contamination - Work with Biffa to improve use of Springboard by crews 
so that contamination monitoring can be progressed.

 Bins return policy – CMT are looking to review the policy this year, to 
allow more flexibility. This will be reported to JESC once finalised this 
contract year. 

 Zonal bin deliveries – CMT to confirm success of the trial and report 
back to JESC.

9.11 Idverde – the key focus for this contract year will be the following:

 Acorn System – Improved provision of schedules and returns through the 
Project Acorn computer system

 Change Mechanism – Completion of this to enable more accurate 
service remodelling to enable visibility of costs and resources.

 Review of hitsquads - A review of both the leafing and green hitsquad in 
order to ascertain added value, and in splitting costs across the relevant 
clients.

 Review of Rural Sweeping – Review of this service to tackle issues 
outlined in the report.

 Lead Roles – Full implementation of lead client roles for CMOs.
 Closer working with HCC/ Skanska - more joined up working and 

increased communications.
 Grit storage at depot – to ensure continuity of service.

9.12 Wettons – the key focus for this contract year will be the following;

 Procurement process for contract which expires in March 2019.
 PQMS?
 Working with clients on recommending building/fittings improvement. 

Appendices

Appendix A - CMT Service Plan
Appendix B – Communications Strategy and Plan
Appendix C - CMT Annual Performance Dashboard
Appendix D – Idverde Annual Report
Appendix E -  Biffa Annual Report



Appendix C

Appendix 3



Environmental Service – Service Plan 2017/18 

Vision

We provide an exceptional level of Contract Management, delivering sustainable, 
compliant and cost effective environmental services for everyone.

We work to provide a clean, safe and aesthetically pleasing environment for our 
residents and businesses and to attract visitors to the area.

Our communication and customer service is at the heart of what we do when dealing 
with customers to ensure we deliver the highest of standards and satisfaction levels 
and to keep people informed.

AIMS/ Why we do what we do – 

1. Good Contract Management
2. Good service to residents/ customer satisfaction
3. Safe, clean and aesthetically pleasing environment for our residents/visitors
4. Economic benefit to maintaining area
5. Perception of team/doing good job/reputational/ we care
6. Communicate to residents
7. Statutory Duty – WCA/ litter authority
8. Increase recycling rates/ reduce waste
9. Value for money/ efficient
10.To avoid a public health disaster
11.Meet objectives of authorities’ business plans
12.Maintain the provision of services (pub. Conveniences, parks etc) 

Objectives: What and How?

Barriers Solutions
Data cleansing of information to ensure correct 
on data bases and springboard.

Includes; Assisted, clinical and multiple bin 
properties.

Task group met on 24.08.17 to discuss new 
process of all CMOS reviewing their area by 
April 2018, and writing to residents to refresh 
lists. See shared folder ‘Task Group 1 for 
details’

Biffa – empty all required bins 
every time (reduce missed 
collections – zero misses)

Biffa/waste – improve 
contractor performance and 
recording of collection 
data/issues, better return 
times and bin delivery times

Biffa to use Springboard or alternative 
required.

Objective 1: To Ensure High Level of Contract Management is applied Consistently 
across all Contracts



Monitoring resource to enable pro-active 
working and prevent complaints/ customer 
dissatisfaction. 

To allow contract managers to manage the 
process for contract compliance and issue 
SPF, council to support this and follow up with 
Biffa management on penalties imposed. 

Contract meetings more informed with set 
dashboard data which will set the agenda – 
less operational (CMOs/SWPs should be more 
about contract projects and 
performance/dealing with operation issues)

Regular fortnightly CMO/ SWP meetings
Biffa to deal with issues and update on 
Springboard
Provide transparent strategy to achieve 
ultimate goal with contract communication. 
Tackle through Partnership Work Programme.

Poor performing contractors = 
high customer complaints

Rounds currently not
 completed

More flexible resourcing – Biffa + IDV, don’t 
lose the hit squad. Review of Hort Hitsquad
Biffa to deal with high turnover of staff.

High level discussions with Biffa Management 
for ways to stabilise workforce
Biffa to use new agency provider

Discussions with Biffa on how 
current driver shortage can 
be overcome, allowing time 
for supervisors to supervise

Make drivers into charge hands with extra 
payment to take responsibility for crews and 
actions
Partnership workshops involving the whole 
team. Contract managed in partnership – 
continue Partnership Working Programme.
Regular meetings/catch-ups required, better 
communication at all levels.  

Swap the managers around or workshop to be 
held on how each would do things differently

 Joint monitoring

CMT/contractor relationship – 
improve

Senior management to 
improve working relationships 
with contractors – higher level 
communication.

Back office review and support – as part of the 
Partnership Working Programme
Rigid things on monitoring with Biffa – review. Monitoring bins

If in a road, do the whole audit, take a holistic 
approach.



Training – create experts in each 
field/champions, more resilient, able team
Contract training for CMOs and managers to 
increase expertise

Lack of expertise within team 
– generic knowledge only

Train staff – Kier H&S course was very good – 
makes you realise we are all responsible for 
H&S

Barriers Solutions
Contractors – enforce contractors to follow 
contract
Safe systems of work – contractor supervisors 
driving rounds, therefore unable to monitor 
crews for failing to operate safe systems of 
work. 

Safe environment for the 
public

Ensure suppliers comply with 
H&S legislation

Enforce separate mop-up vehicles for waste 
types for missed bins (= loss in recyclable 
material) – will be addressed in rounds re-
scheduling (hopefully!)

Ensure CMT comply with 
H&S legislation

H&S monitoring – review required.

Regular completion and update of risk 
assessments.
Better communication between authorities to 
co-ordinate work.

No partnership working with 
other authorities – HCC litter 
picking/grass cutting Quarterly meeting with HCC already underway, 

and meeting in October 2017 planned with new 
contractor Skanska for better Partnership 
Working.

Barrier Solution
Project plan required for Biffa rounds re-
organisation including new rounds
Monitoring of new rounds - complete

Implement Rounds 
Rescheduling

Final decision on implementation with Members, 
decision included as part of options appraisal, 
decision November 2017.

Contamination Monitoring 
of Recycling Bins

Contractor can’t be relied 

Promote what we can take

Objective 3 - Plan and Implement Service Improvements

Objective 2 - To ensure legislative compliance by the Contractor and within 
Contract Management Team



Correct usage of Springboard i.e. correct lock-outs 

Task meeting 1 (JE/ IB/ KE/ DE/ SW/ NW/ JB)
We could use Springboard better, run report of 
contamination and no longer back door 

Tag the bins
Tag bins with bar codes

on to support 
contamination monitoring 
or record info on 
Springboard/ Lack of 
permanent staff

This cannot be progressed 
until Rounds 
Rescheduling is 
completed.

Communications – tags etc

Review of hitsquads Issue to be discussed and reviewed in Pre-meet.
Data cleansing –

Litter Bins Audit

Task meeting 2 (MB/ SW/ DR/ IB/ NW/ RG)

WCC litter bins – currently ongoing (plotting 
locations and schedules)

EHDC – locations up to date

Schedules

1. Accurate lengths 
and 
measurements

2. Review of 
frequency/ 
recommendation 
to clients.

Data cleansing –
- Plan
- Extra resource
- Get contractors on board
- Realistic timescale
-Ongoing review and 
updating

Task meeting 2 (MB/ SW/ DR/ IB/ NW/ RG)

Data needed to be cleansed

Car parks – progress first

HOLD ON:
Streets
Litter
Open spaces:  What they are contracted for – MB
Grass – eg highways
(from G4 – less ownership/client – fed to Auto Bill 
of 2 – MB/CMO/JF)
Grounds – what conservation area means - 
delivered – contract spec no longer relevant?  
SCC/CMOs/Leisure Centres

Lagan: 

Living with legacy 
systems, Lagan suitable 
for mobile working

CMT to dictate what they want
* Bring it back to EH?
* Get rid of Lagan?
* In-team resource to make Lagan changes
* Clear route to direct comments – who is the 
team leader?

Lagan script difficult to change
Lagan very prescriptive

IT – who would host?



Inadequate reporting 
systems – lack of data and 
reports

Acorn:
Springboard:

MT/ MB raise with suppliers

Acorn doesn’t work.
It is not used.
Mobile working – this needs to be escalated 
higher as well, explore whether we can piggy back 
on Idverde system 
Mobile working – what is it that we want/ how 
could it be provided and what are the initial costs. 
Project plan needed/ review

Meeting with Craig,

- Can Lagan fully integrate with Acorn and 
Springboard and Whitespace

- Can Microsoft dynamics integrate with 
above.

- Contact suppliers to confirm
- Time and resource needs to be allocated 

within the project for implementation
- Customer service/ IT/ GIS on project team
- Cost tbc for tablets with capability for 

managing job queues etc.
- Online forms need to be developed – need 

to identify which ones
- GIS layer and ownership
- Paper going at xmas time – if signed off will 

allow new mobile phone with browsers and 
more capability to manage emails and 
applications, replacement planned April 
time. 

- October – when IT moves to Capita 365, 
new security measures will enable this 
functionality with tablets. 

- Craig will be managing strategy under five 
councils, but currently vacancy for 
replacement.

- Chris Moss deals with phones. Speak to 
Dave Fitzgerard about tablet trial.

Business plan that justifies the final outlay and to 
be fully supported by the council 

Mobile working - being a 
more efficient team, 
improve customer 
satisfaction and response 
times.

Mobile working – cost of 
set-up, internal IT systems

Mobile working meeting (Tom Locke) – build a 
case, and look at what processes we’ll want to 
digitalise. What is the impact of these changes on 
CSC/ Staff/ public. Prioritise them.



Mobile working – escalate mobile working solution 
higher
* Investigate whether we can tap into/use 

IDV’s mobile working solution
* Meeting needed for all CMOs and Sharon 

to decide what is needed/mobile working 
requirements on the ground – SW/CMOs
- Forms needed
- Checks required
- Baselines?
- Photographs
- GIS – web based
- WOs?

* IT involvement to build on-line 
forms/spreadsheets – IT/SW/CMOs

* Business case needed for purchase of 
equipment – NW/MB/MT/SW

*    CSC involvement – requirements to be 
discussed in CMO meeting – CSC to raise 
cases after email of forms from site – 
SW/AK – can we have own admin to do 
this, which will increase office cover?  No 
need for CSC involvement as these are our 
cases

* Contractor systems – Springboard/Acorn – 
compatibility?  IT/Contractors

* Schedules uploaded to J Drive/shared 
access drive – shared access points – 
available to view on site – Kahootz – IT

*      Tablet/IPad, can have blank forms, fill in and 
save as then email to CSC to raise case

Improved target setting to 
drive contracts forward

Achieve targets that are rewarding. SMART’ 
targets to be set up and sense checked against all 
the team’s objectives

Following service planning all staff will have 
suitable objectives for 17/18, checked across the 
team and in line with service plan

Restricted by requirement 
for JESC sign off for 
projects.

We are restricted by the political process for sign 
off in some cases and this is required. Special 
task meetings will identify aspects that can be 
progressed.
Return to pro-active monitoring to reduce the 
number of customer complaints and ‘fire fighting’ – 

Pro-active working – 
mobile working solution

Change from fire fighting

Become a pro-active team 
and 

Prioritising workload/ CMO problem solving



All managers to discuss colour profile in 1:1s and 
it to develop each individual and working 
relationship between individual and manager. 

Each member of staff to discuss colour profile with 
1 other member of another team
Pick up on some aspects further in team meetings
Arrange a follow up Away Day in May 2018

Ensure continuous 
development of the team 
and become more 
interactive, and pick up 
and develop on what was 
learnt on the away day.

Arrange a service planning day in April 2018
Existing specs review. Re-write/simplify 
specification and contract for whatever result of 
options approved and then enforce improved 
contact to ensure service to residents

Re-visit/review team structure and management 
structure. Project Team for comms. 
More resource to enable contract monitoring to 
highlight issues

Options Appraisal

Contract – more money 
for new/extended 
contracts, better service 
and leads to more pro-
activeness from CMT Increase in funding to allow additional resource – 

monitoring and admin resource

Barriers Solutions
Repeat problems especially 
with Biffa, residents’/ 
members’ high expectations

One stop shop – more ownership with end to 
end interaction at first point of contact. 

CSC only to put cases to CMT that they can’t 
find a solution to, i.e. assisted requests, 6+ 
requests, OOT complaints. Raise with CSC 
Manager
CSC review of the SLA 

Review of scripts and procedures to ensure they 
are doing it right (Partnership Working 
Programme)
Following this, training for CSC staff, job 
shadowing with CMT

CSC not properly dealing 
with the call.

CSC – additional support

Customer service, managers transparency, 
going to other managers

Managing customer 
expectation and reducing 
complaints (customers 
expect same service 
standard as previous 
contracts).

Clearer communication with clients what is 
expected via regular meetings and seasonal 
messages, clients/members manage 
expectations/ raise our profile (Take RH out of 
the equation).

Objective 4 - Aim to Continuously Improve Customer Satisfaction



React quickly/within timescale to public 
requests/complaints and ensure all cases are 
responded to with an outcome/
IT Solution – schedules/cuts available on line for 
public view
Ensure all information is to hand and can 
answer questions on-site without second visit
Ensure voicemail/ call divert when out of the 
office

Client/customer/councillor 
expectation needs to be 
managed better

Poor contractor performance, 
customer/councillor 
expectations

Challenge incorrect information/ unjustified 
complaint. 

Ability to be out with our 
residents (engagement)

Implement Mobile working/ Team Review

Mapping and communication 
– GIS – also pro-active end 
of day wrap up and 
immediate comms

Finalise Communications Strategy and Plan. 
Report progress to JESC and team  6 monthly.
Initiatives to be supported by team on service 
issues (pre-empting possible issues i.e. grass 
cutting, missed roads, publish on 
FaceBook/Twitter)
Develop and complete residents packs

Press releases
Seasonal Communications

Better communications with 
our residents 

Pro-active – grow the service 
to meet customer 
expectation

More information on-line (CRM). How what do 
we need to do? Easier on-line access to 
information (like grass cutting schedules?)

communications budget – NW write a case/ 
paper.

More resource to carry out 
education on re-cycling

SW to track Communication budget (excel) – not 
currently spending to budget.
Include in Communications Plan/ StrategyOn-line customer satisfaction 

survey  Include in Corporate Customer Satisfaction 
Survey (March 2018)
More direct informative emails from CMT/ NWCommunications to manage 

expectations/ raise our profile 
and clear communication 
routes – particularly WCC 
members and Parish 
Councils 

NW to discuss what can be done with Rob.

Improve communication 
within team from Head of 
Service downwards and from 

Head of Service to attend more team meetings.



Team meetings to include updates from NW (managers to both sides of 
the team. I.e. calendar has 
CSC number and other 
officer numbers (reduce 
duplication).

Better communication 
needed between managers 
and officers – interaction not 
fed down chain

Regular Pre-meets/ Mini- Team Meetings need 
to be booked in diary monthly/ fortnightly 
(following the Managers Team Meeting) so 
issues, instructions and updates can be 
discussed.

Barriers Solutions
Automatic bill of quantities
Better communication between 
clients regarding fees and 
costs

Process needs to be communicated with all 
clients with regular monthly updates on costs 
and charges.

Get a another GW vehicle 
(EHDC)

Included as part of the Options Appraisal with 
decision in November
Investigate how to generate income from fly-
tipping
Identify number of fly-tips on private land – 
OC/survey/environment team

Lose income from fly-tipping 
re-charge, i.e. asbestos 

Hazardous – pass on costs of specialist 
contractor – who to?  We organise removal 
and charge admin fee
Review grass cutting - Identify areas where 
we can reduce frequency – where possible, is 
it cheaper?  What would happen to the 
cuttings?
(Could lead to sightline issues etc)

Stop cutting the grass so much 
– drop HCC top-up

HCC grass – SLA until 
2018/19?

Identify Wild flower areas or cheaper 
alternatives

Investigate other income 
streams

All staff to bring forward ideas to investigate

Re-charge clients/other customers for hit 
squad work (crew)
Meeting with HCC to address additional 
charges for impact of their HWRC changes

Lack of funds for;

CMT
IT Put business case together and apply for 

more funding (probably post options 
appraisal)

Objective 5: Effectively Manage the Council’s Finance’s and Resources



Barriers Solutions
Improve bio-diversity and 
ecology, less grass cutting

Bio-diversity – do things differently, change 
attitude

Wild flower meadows (would need to be 
resourced and managed properly)
Increase recycling and reduce waste by 3.7%;

Re-cycling – enforce contractor to do what’s in 
the contract to improve re-cycling and
CMT to improve communication to residents and 
drive re-cycling and environmental issues via 
Communications Plan
More resource – dedicated re-cycling officer or 
increase in CMO resource to enable re-cycling 
drives/training

Low level of recycling and 
waste reduction, as not 
enough time, money and 
resource to target.

More involvement by CMOs/ Contractor
Include in Communications Strategy (Get buy in 
from residents – promote Love where you Live).

High level of littering in 
some areas

Engage with Enforcement and more joint working 
to promote or with initiatives (littering and 
flytipping)

High level of flytipping Reduce flytipping via covert monitoring
High level of contamination Tackle contamination. 

EHDC is 14.65%, WCC is 14.22%.
Target – 14% March 2018.

-

Objective 6 - Maintain a clean, tidy and safe environment and promote sustainability 
where possible



A3
2

A272

B3006

B3004

A31
B3002

B3
34

9

B2149

B2146

A3

B2148
B2

19
9

B2131

B2070

A3M

A272

A3
M

B3002

B300
4

B3004

A3

B3
00

6

B3004

B2
07

0

B2070

LISS

BEECH
ALTON

BORDON

ROPLEY

CHAWTON

BINSTED

HEADLEY

LIPHOOK

BENTLEY

HORNDEAN

MEDSTEAD

BRAMSHOTT

BENTWORTH

CLANFIElD

GRAYSHOTT

EAST MEON

FOUR MARKS

PETERSFIELD

EHDC

Fly Tipping Cases East Hants financial year 2016 - 2017

Legend
Towns
Roads

!( 2016-17 Fly Tipping
Count by location

1 - 3
3 - 6
6 - 10
10 - 17
17 - 29

Ward Count
1 - 12
13 - 26
27 - 47
48 - 76
77 - 127





A3
2

A272

B3006

B3004

A31
B3002

B3
34

9

B2149

B2146

A3

B2148
B2

19
9

B2131

B2070

A3M

A272

A3
M

B3002

B300
4

B3004

A3

B3
00

6

B3004

B2
07

0

B2070

LISS

BEECH
ALTON

BORDON

ROPLEY

CHAWTON

BINSTED

HEADLEY

LIPHOOK

BENTLEY

HORNDEAN

MEDSTEAD

BRAMSHOTT

BENTWORTH

CLANFIElD

GRAYSHOTT

EAST MEON

FOUR MARKS

PETERSFIELD

EHDC

Fly Tipping Cases East Hants financial year 2016 - 2017

Legend
Towns
Roads

!( 2016-17 Fly Tipping
Count by location

1 - 3
3 - 6
6 - 10
10 - 17
17 - 29

Ward Count
1 - 12
13 - 26
27 - 47
48 - 76
77 - 127





                                                                                                                                       

                   

£435,722, 44% £548,008.00, 
56%

Spend to Date Remaining Budget

EHDC: IDV Expenditure

£2,108,285.00, 
56%

£1,666,349.00, 
44%

Spend to Date Remaining Budget

EHDC: Biffa Expenditure

0
200,000
400,000
600,000
800,000

1,000,000
1,200,000
1,400,000

April May June July August September October November December January February March
Total EHDC IDV Contract Budget 81,978 163,955 245,933 327,910 409,888 491,865 573,843 655,820 737,798 819,775 901,753 983,730
Monthly Spend (actuals) 164,920 172,986 218,004 214,180 188,396 216,128
Cumulative Spend (EHDC & WCC) 164,920 337,906 555,910 770,090 958,486 1,174,614 1,174,614 1,174,614 1,174,614 1,174,614 1,174,614 1,174,614
Net Spend (After WCC Recharge) (Cum) 58,207 123,732 205,175 308,162 358,070 435,722 435,722 435,722 435,722 435,722 435,722 435,722

EHDC: Idverde (IDV) Contract Costs and  Expenditure

Co
st

s (
£)

0
500,000

1,000,000
1,500,000
2,000,000
2,500,000
3,000,000
3,500,000
4,000,000

April May June July August September October November December January February March
Total BIFFA Contract Budget 314,553 629,106 943,659 1,258,211 1,572,764 1,887,317 2,201,870 2,516,423 2,830,976 3,145,528 3,460,081 3,774,634
Monthly Spend (actuals) 309,634 361,328 357,362 379,292 340,173 360,496
Cumulative Spend (EHDC & WCC) 309,634 670,962 1,028,324 1,407,616 1,747,789 2,108,285 2,108,285 2,108,285 2,108,285 2,108,285 2,108,285 2,108,285
Net Spend (After WCC Recharge) (Cum) 180,996 404,175 590,309 803,572 1,000,196 1,169,734 1,169,734 1,169,734 1,169,734 1,169,734 1,169,734 1,169,734

EHDC: Biffa Contract Costs and Expenditure

Co
st

s (
£)

April May June July August September October November December January February March Income to 
date

Income 
minus 

adjustment

Forecast
£-

£200,000

£400,000

£600,000

£800,000

£1,000,000

Garden Waste Licences 2017/18 DMR 2017/18 Glass Net Income and Credits Textiles HCC Agency Agreement payment

EHDC IncomeStreams: Achieved v Forecast

Performance and Service Requests – WCC and EHDC Combined

Environmental Services: September 2016 – October 2017 
Dashboard

Waste and Recycling, Street Cleansing, Grounds 
Maintenance,

Public Conveniences

                                                                                                  

All Contract costs are paid by EHDC directly as the lead Authority and then recharges are made to WCC. 
This can lead to fluctuations month on month due to a lag time in payments, however currently payments are 
on track at this point in the year. Income to date is on track with forecast, including minus some adjustments.



£738,892, 47%
£846,293, 53%

Spend to Date Remaining Budget

WCC: IDV Expenditure

£938,551.00, 
54%

£795,585.00, 
46%

Spend to Date Remaining Budget

WCC: Biffa Expenditure

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

1,600,000

1,800,000

April May June July August September October November December January February March
Total IDV Contract Budget 132,099 264,198 396,296 528,395 660,494 792,593 924,691 1,056,790 1,188,889 1,320,988 1,453,086 1,585,185
Monthly Spend (actuals) 106,713 107,461 136,561 111,193 138,488 138,476
Cumulative Spend 106,713 214,174 350,735 461,928 600,416 738,892 738,892 738,892 738,892 738,892 738,892 738,892

WCC: Idverde (IDV) Contract Spend and Expenditure

Co
st

s (
£)

0
200,000
400,000
600,000
800,000

1,000,000
1,200,000
1,400,000
1,600,000
1,800,000

April May June July August September October November December January February March
Total Biffa Contract Budget 144,511 289,023 433,534 578,045 722,557 867,068 1,011,579 1,156,091 1,300,602 1,445,113 1,589,625 1,734,136
Monthly Spend (actuals) 128,638 138,149 171,228 166,029 143,549 190,958
Cumulative Spend 128,638 266,787 438,015 604,044 747,593 938,551 938,551 938,551 938,551 938,551 938,551 938,551

WCC: Biffa Contract Spend and Expenditure

Co
st

s (
£)

April May June July August September October November December January February March Income to 
Date

Forecast
£-

£100,000.00

£200,000.00

£300,000.00

£400,000.00

2016/17 DMR 2015/16 Glass net income 2016/17 Glass Credits

WCC Income Streams: Achieved v Forecast 

Income and Expenditure – WCC only

Generally spend will always be on target for WCC as there is only 1 transaction for the core services 
between the two authorities. 



 

Animals, 239, 6%
Bring Site, 17, 0%

Fencelines, 22, 1%

Flytipping, 2082, 
48%

Grass Cutting, 348, 
8%

Hedge Cutting, 259, 
6%

Leaf Clearance, 196, 
5%

Litter Picking, 335, 
8%

Public Dog 
Bin/Litter Bin, 223, 

5%

Public Litter Bin, 51, 
1%

Road Sweeping, 
197, 5%

Shrub Beds, 90, 2%

Street Cleaning, 
204, 5%

IDV Cases by Category - October 2016 to September 2017

October November December January February March April May June July August September
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

All Cases IDV 2016 - 2017 All Cases IDV 2015 - 2016

IDV cases 2015-16 vs 2016-17

Sep Aug Jul Jun May Apr Mar Feb Jan Dec Nov Oct
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Fly tiping cases EHDC 2016/17 Fly tiping cases EHDC 2015/16

Fly tip cases EHDC 2015/16-2016/17

      

Sep Aug Jul Jun May Apr Mar Feb Jan Dec Nov Oct
0

20

40

60

80

100

Fly tiping cases WCC 2016/17 Fly tiping cases WCC 2015/16

Fly tip cases WCC 2015/16-2016/17

Number of Customer Cases: IDV

- Total number of 4310 cases raised this 
contract year.

- Flytipping make up nearly half (48%) of 
these across the districts, over the 
year.

- The next largest number of reports 
related to grass cutting and littering 
picking, both making up 8% of all 
cases.

- This is followed by Hedge cutting (6%), 
dead animals (6%), Leaf clearance 
(5%) and litter bins (5%).

- In general all other services generate 
an equal ratio of work.

Number of Customer Cases: IDV

The total number of IDV cases has reduced this year from 4881 to 4310 this year. This could be attributed to the 
improvements made to grass cutting and the Acorn programming system this year.

Performance and Service Requests – WCC and EHDC Combined



Oct-
15

Nov-1
5

Dec-1
5

Jan
-16

Fe
b-16

Mar-
16

Apr-1
6

May
-16

Jun-16
Jul-1

6

Aug-1
6

Se
p-16

Oct-
16

Nov-1
6

Dec-1
6

Jan
-17

Fe
b-17

Mar-
17

Apr-1
7

May
-17

Jun-17
Jul-1

7

Aug-1
7

Se
p-17

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Car Boot load or less Other Single Item significant/multiple loads Single Black bag Small van load Tipper Lorry load Transit Van load

EHDC Fly tip by size Oct 2015-Sep  2017

Oct-
15

Nov-1
5

Dec-1
5

Jan
-16

Fe
b-16

Mar-
16

Apr-1
6

May
-16

Jun-16
Jul-1

6

Aug-1
6

Se
p-16

Oct-
16

Nov-1
6

Dec-1
6

Jan
-17

Fe
b-17

Mar-
17

Apr-1
7

May
-17

Jun-17
Jul-1

7

Aug-1
7

Se
p-17

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Car Boot load or less Other Single Item significant/multiple loads Single Black bag Small van load Tipper Lorry load Transit Van load

WCC Fly tip by size Oct 2015-Sep  2017

0

5

10

15

20

25

Oct-15Nov-15Dec-15Jan-16Feb-16Mar-16Apr-16May-16Jun-16Jul-16Aug-16Sep-16Oct-16Nov-16Dec-16Jan-17Feb-17Mar-17Apr-17May-17Jun-17Jul-17Aug-17Sep-17
Animal carcass 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Asbestoes 0 0 0 2 2 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 0
Black bags - commercial 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Black bags - Other Household 4 4 8 11 7 17 17 14 5 11 14 15 17 9 5 9 8 20 10 9 20 9 7 17
Chemical drums, oil or fuel 1 1 2 0 0 2 0 1 1 0 0 2 3 0 0 3 0 0 1 2 2 1 0 0
Clinical 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Construction / demolition / excavation 15 15 6 12 11 13 18 11 16 22 18 16 20 17 10 14 7 9 14 14 16 8 7 15
Green 3 3 7 2 0 6 2 5 6 6 8 5 8 8 5 6 2 3 4 4 9 3 5 1
Other (unidentified) 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial 0 0 0 2 2 3 1 1 6 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 2
Electrical 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 3 0 1 0 0 1 0
Other Household 9 9 11 11 9 10 8 2 10 17 11 12 12 12 5 10 6 16 8 6 6 10 7 8
Tyres 1 1 1 5 3 8 10 5 1 4 1 1 2 4 4 7 1 2 1 0 2 2 0 2
Vehicle Parts 2 2 1 4 6 2 2 2 0 1 5 0 0 2 1 0 1 1 0 2 1 0 0 1
White Goods 2 2 7 3 0 3 3 1 1 6 4 1 1 3 5 5 6 1 2 0 1 4 4 3

EHDC Fly tip by type Oct 2015-Sep  2017

N
um

be
r o

f f
ly

 ti
ps



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Oct-15Nov-15Dec-15Jan-16Feb-16Mar-16Apr-16May-16Jun-16Jul-16Aug-16Sep-16Oct-16Nov-16Dec-16Jan-17Feb-17Mar-17Apr-17May-17Jun-17Jul-17Aug-17Sep-17
Animal carcass 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Asbestoes 0 0 1 1 4 1 3 0 1 4 2 0 1 1 0 0 2 1 0 0 2 0 2 1
Black bags - commercial 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Black bags - Other Household 8 4 12 32 12 8 16 21 9 13 5 19 10 10 20 21 20 31 10 9 10 9 15 23
Chemical drums, oil or fuel 0 1 2 1 1 0 2 3 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 1 0 2
Clinical 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Construction / demolition / excavation 10 15 12 16 20 20 23 14 14 12 9 15 14 9 15 15 6 12 16 17 16 18 9 16
Green 3 3 5 14 6 4 3 2 6 9 1 12 8 5 1 9 7 6 3 10 4 12 5 6
Other (unidentified) 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial 1 0 2 3 3 3 3 5 2 0 5 0 1 3 5 2 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 1
Electrical 0 0 3 4 3 2 4 1 0 1 2 0 1 1 1 1 1 3 0 1 0 1 0 1
Other Household 28 9 23 8 28 21 20 12 16 7 16 14 17 16 8 29 16 17 2 13 9 22 12 6
Tyres 2 1 2 3 7 3 5 3 1 1 5 5 4 2 2 5 2 4 2 1 2 3 3 9
Vehicle Parts 1 2 2 1 2 7 1 0 0 0 1 2 2 2 2 6 3 5 3 0 0 0 3 2
White Goods 7 2 7 2 7 3 5 3 4 6 5 6 6 5 5 6 4 6 6 3 1 3 9 4

WCC Fly tip by type Oct 2015-Sep  2017

N
um

be
r o

f f
ly

 ti
ps

Oct-15Nov-15Dec-15Jan-16Feb-16Mar-16Apr-16May-16Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16Sep-16Oct-16Nov-16Dec-16Jan-17Feb-17Mar-17Apr-17May-17Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17Sep-17
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Rectifications Defaults Linear (Rectifications) Linear (Defaults)

IDV Number of Rectifications and Defaults October 2015-September 2017

Flytipping

- The graphs above show a breakdown of the flytip cases raised each month for the last contract year, compared to the 
previous year, split by each authority.

- The figures show a slight reduction in the number of cases with 805 last year in WCC, dropping this year to 744. In 
EHDC, it has dropped from 620 last year to 583. This does not reflect the size of each fly tip, as our contractor reports 
that the size of fly tips is increasing. There are no real seasonal trends to the data.

- The information reports the number of cases logged, which could include multiple cases about the same flytip. It also 
does not take consideration of the size or type of flytip, which could change over time. 

Rectifications and Defaults – IDV

The number of rectification and defaults issued has reduced this year, compared to the previous year. 



 

AWC, 32%

Bulky Waste, 2%
Clinical Waste, 0%

CMO Complaint, 36%

Complaint, 2%

Garden Waste, 12%

Glass Collection, 3%
Health, 1%

Overfilled, 0%

Return, 11%

Biffa: Cases by Category for October 2016 to September 2017

October November December January February March April May June July August September
0

200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400
1600
1800

All Cases Biffa 2016 - 2017 All Cases Biffa 2015 - 2016

Biffa cases 2015-16 vs 2016-17

Oct-15Nov-15Dec-15Jan-16Feb-16Mar-16Apr-16May-16Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16Sep-16Oct-16Nov-16Dec-16Jan-17Feb-17Mar-17Apr-17May-17Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17Sep-17
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Rectifications Defaults Linear (Rectifications) Linear (Defaults)

Biffa Rectifications and Defaults October 2015-September 2017

Number of Customer Cases: Biffa

The number of Biffa cases has increased considerably this year from 12268 last year to 15782 this last contract year. This is 
an increase of 28%, and demonstrates the continued fall in performance as outlined in the main report.

Biffa: Strategic Performance Framework

The table shows the number of defaults received as part of the SPF. Due to the contract management situation both at 
Biffa and within the contract management team the SP verification has not taken place and will need to be verified on the 
return of Martin Taylor.



Missed AWC bins Missed Garden 
waste

Missed Kerbside 
Glass

Bring Site Glass. 
Overflowing sites

Clinical Waste. 
Missed collections Total Defaults

Sep-16 344 132 27 8 1 32
October 308 143 24 1 4 46

November 411 137 37 2 0 48
December 284 67 22 8 6 23

January 204 134 49 10 5 33
February 366 103 51 5 9 22

March 411 183 54 1 5 18
April 419 173 23 0 2 32
May 412 170 35 1 2 11
June 449 191 52 2 1 12
July 472 151 51 5 2 18

August 504 271 53 3 8 15
September 399 229 36 3 0 7

Oct-17 NOT YET 
AVAILABLE

NOT YET 
AVAILABLE

NOT YET 
AVAILABLE

NOT YET 
AVAILABLE

NOT YET 
AVAILABLE

NOT YET 
AVAILABLE

 

A
pr-16

M
ay-16

Jun-16

Jul-16

A
ug-16

Sep-16

O
ct-16

N
ov-16

D
ec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

M
ar-17

A
pr-17

M
ay-17

Jun-17

Jul-17

A
ug-17

Sep-17

Repeated service failure 1  3 4 4 5 3 2 8 7 2 3 2 5 4 3 2 5

EHDC green waste - Missed 
due to not using spring 
board

    6  1            

Failing to comply with a 
rectification notice

1 2 4 4 8 1             

Whole road missed   1   2  1 1  1 4 1  1 2   

Bin deliver out of timescale 11 3 1 26 6 12 24 28 4 1 6 1 11 3 4 5 9 1

Bring site container not 
secure

   5 1 1 1 2 2  2        

Health & Safety failure - 
Decanting

    2    1        1  

H & S failure - Reversing 
wrong way up a one way St

    2              

Failure to return container  1          1       

Overflowing glass bank   1     1 1  1        

Missed assisted      6 3 2  2 2 3 9 1  2  1

Missed GW      4  7 2 4  2 3 1 2 2 1  

Missed kerb glass      1   1 2 1   1  1 1  

Missed recycling       2 3  14 1 2 1  1    

Missed refuse       1 1 1 3 4 2 2   1 1  

Bring site broken glass       1            

Bulky waste out of timescale       2            

Failure to use PDA       7            

H&S failure crew inspection 
failed

      1 1 2  2 2 2  1 2   

Crew behaviour             1      

Total      32 46 48 23 33 22 18 32 11 13 18 15 7

Biffa: Defaults by Category

The table below shows the number of defaults applied to each service over the last contract year. It should be noted that 
there was an agreed ‘loosening’ of the application of defaults from June onwards as a result of the partnership work and in 
order for CMOS and supervisors to work more closely together in order to deal with issues longer term, rather than default. 

The vast majority relate to repeated service failures and bins delivered out of timescale, as referred to in the report.



32.80% 33.10% 33.50% 31.50% 32.73%

35.10%
34.50% 34.10%

31.40%

34.66%

36.60%

34.54%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Yearly total
31.00%

32.00%

33.00%

34.00%

35.00%

36.00%

37.00%

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Recycling (Reuse and  Composting) Rate for EHDC

38.70% 35.80% 33.80% 29.60% 34.60%

35.80% 36.20% 33.00% 31.80% 34.20%

38.20% 38.70%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Yearly total
0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Recycling (Reuse and  Composting) Rate for WCC

2002/03

2003/04

2005/07

2007/08

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18
0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

Garden Waste Properties Garden Waste Licences Maximum Properties

Garden Waste active Properties & Licences

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July August Sept
0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

Telephone interactions Oct 2015 - Sep 16 Telephone interactions Oct 2016 Sep 17 Online interactions Oct 2015 - Sep 16
Online interactions Oct 2016 Sep 17

Customer Service Centre: Number of Contacts by Phone and Online Oct 2015 -Sep 2017

Garden Waste – number of properties and 
licences

 Graph shows number of new properties and 
licences who have signed up to the garden 
waste service each year. 

 Peak month for signing up is July, followed 
by June and then November. Lowest month 
is February.

 Subscriptions have decreased year on year 
as charges have increased and since the 
service has changed.

 This data applies to EHDC, as WCC have a 
free service.

EHDC Garden Waste: Number of Annual 
Properties and Licences

Recycling Performance – There has been a alight increase in recycling rate for Winchester on last years quarter, 
however East Hampshire’s rate has dropped off. We are hoping that with the implementation of the communications plan 
this will have some impact on tonnages going forward.



0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500
4000
4500
5000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July August Sept
Telephone interactions Oct 2015 - Sep 16 2897 3043 2596 3110 2508 2802 3126 3247 4125 4225 3566 3277
Telephone interactions Oct 2016 Sep 17 3168 4539 2628 2348 2828 3470 3345 3602 4047 3913 3968
Online interactions Oct 2015 - Sep 16 359 405 308 479 434 477 516 564 703 623 565 749
Online interactions Oct 2016 Sep 17 569 569 485 767 404 638 607 634 762 642 777

Customer Service Centre: Number of Contacts by Phone and Online Oct 2015 -Sep 2017
Ax

is
 T

itl
e

Author: Nicola Watts
Environmental Services Contract Manager

Customer Service Contact

The number of calls into the CSC has increased compared to last year from 38522, to 41756 this contract year. The 
number of contacts online has also increased from 6182 to 7552. 





idverde Year 6 JESC Report – Commercially Confidential 1

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL AND WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL
GROUNDS MAINTENANCE AND STREET CARE CONTRACT

YEAR SIX REPORT
TO THE JOINT ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COMMITTEE AND 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE ANNUAL SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Introduction

idverde has pleasure in presenting this sixth Annual Review of the Grounds Maintenance and Street 
Care Contract to the Joint Environmental Services Committee. 

We are happy to be able to report some real progress during 2017 to address some of the issues 
experienced during 2016.

Highlights of the year include:

 The employment of a Systems Analyst to manage the Acorn system, providing clearer 
information in terms of work programming and completion.

 The introduction of our PQMS monitoring system with live inspection data visible to the 
Client via their portal.

 The incorporation of cleansing data into the Acorn system, which led to a review of litter bin 
emptying frequencies and an increase from six to eight geographical zones resulting in an 
improvement in service and fewer complaints.

 Improvements in IT infrastructure facilitating enhanced connection speeds to improve live 
data transmissions.

 Additional HGV Sweeper purchased to assist with leaf clearance.

 Over £200k invested in new vehicles and plant, including:

o 7 new vehicles fitted with bin lifting equipment and tail lifts to improve capacity 
and responsiveness for bin emptying and fly tip clearances.

o Electric Goupil G5 vehicle for use in Winchester City Centre to reduce 
environmental impacts and noise disturbance.

o 4 Ride-on Rotary mowers (John Deere 1570 62”) for highway verge works.

Developments within idverde

2017 has seen some major developments within idverde UK. With the acquisition of the assets of 
Land Engineering, a company based in Scotland, the company now has widespread coverage of 
England and Scotland, with over 2400 employees in the UK and an annual turnover of around £90m. 



idverde Year 6 JESC Report – Commercially Confidential 2

We deliver grounds maintenance services on behalf of 45 local authorities, 20 housing associations, 
600 schools, and 4 universities, with many high profile customers including The Regent’s Park, the 
Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park, Manchester City FC and the V&A Museum. During the last year we 
have also increased the number of Green Flag accredited sites that we maintain to 100, and gained 
an additional three BALI National Awards.

The year has not been without its pressures, however. First amongst these is the ability to recruit 
and retain staff, particularly with the National Living Wage increasing and therefore providing a 
hugely competitive environment at the lower end of the labour market.

Management Team

Continuity has been the key aspect of the Management team during the 2016/17 contract year with 
the same personnel filling the management structure to provide consistent and stable management 
of the service.

The Petersfield and Winchester districts each continued to have a contract manager and supervisor 
to give a localised focus on service delivery. A new Supervisor was recruited, who brought with him a 
higher level of management skills for this positon than had been in place previously. The support 
team based at the Winchester depot was supplemented by a new role, the System Analyst, which is 
a commitment to supporting the Operations team with the Acorn Works Programming system.

Staffing

The year, as previous years, has proved challenging in the recruitment of skilled staff. This is 
common not only across other idverde contracts but also within the industry as a whole, with skilled 
and experienced staff becoming sought after, therefore making the retention of staff difficult with 
competitors also seeking to lure those with suitable skills. A number of operatives have taken the 
opportunity to work beyond the former retirement age of 65 and have proven to be a beneficial 
asset by maintaining their skills and also passing them on internally to staff new to the industry.  

Idverde’s HR department offers support services in the monitoring and control of absenteeism, to 
reduce the negative effect on daily operations, but positively it has been noted that there has been a 
more stringent control on staff attendance which is evident in the service delivery.

Training and Development

The apprentice training implemented last year has continued with a number of staff gaining a 
Workplace Diploma in Horticulture.  

The idverde culture of “grow your own” has seen previously unskilled labour advancing onto higher 
skilled jobs such as Tractor operators and HGV drivers. 

The company continues to focus on training and development as detailed in the table below which 
details the training undertaken in 2017:-



idverde Year 6 JESC Report – Commercially Confidential 3

TRAINING DESCRIPTION No. OF ATTENDEES
Manual Handling Awareness 30
Safe use of Abrasive Wheels 4
Strimmer Operations 17
Mechanical Blower Operations 21
Hedge trimmer Operations 16
Cemetery Training (COTS) 5
Kerstin Hydro Operations 2
Ride on Flail Mower Operations 2
First Aid 3 Day 7
Category B&E Trailer test 3
Category C HGV & Driver CPC 1
Acorn Samsung Device 42

Further training has already been planned for 2017/18 which is detailed in the table below:

TRAINING DESCRIPTION No. OF ATTENDEES
First aid (Appointed persons) 20
Manual Handling 42
Chapter 8 Unit 2/10 Signing Lighting & Guarding 6
NPTC Tractor Operations 2

Investment in the Contract

The following new items have been purchased or leased this year:

Asset Decription Purchase Date Asset Cost

Hedgecutter - Stihl HL100 long handle  01-Feb-17 £454.00
Hedgecutter - Stihl HL100 long handle  01-Feb-17 £454.00
Hedgecutter - Stihl HL100 long handle  01-Feb-17 £454.00
Blower - Stihl BR500 back pack  19-Apr-17 £322.00
Blower - Stihl BG86 hand held  19-Apr-17 £172.00
Blower - Stihl BG86 hand held  19-Apr-17 £172.00
Blower - Stihl BG86 hand held  19-Apr-17 £172.00
Blower - Stihl BG86 hand held  19-Apr-17 £172.00
Blower - Stihl BG86 hand held  19-Apr-17 £172.00
Strimmer - Husqvarna 525RJX  19-Apr-17 £275.00
Strimmer - Husqvarna 525RJX  19-Apr-17 £275.00
Strimmer - Husqvarna 525RJX  19-Apr-17 £275.00
Ride-on mower - John Deere 1570 62"  11-Apr-17 £17,290.83
Ride-on mower - John Deere 1570 62"  11-Apr-17 £17,290.83
Implement - Vredo 2.2m overseeder  22-Mar-17 £12,500.00
Ride-on mower - John Deere 1570 62"  21-Apr-17 £17,290.83
Ride-on mower - John Deere 1570 62"  26-Apr-17 £17,290.84
Access - Henchman 55 Wheeled  31-May-17 £1,206.51



idverde Year 6 JESC Report – Commercially Confidential 4

Access - Henchman work platform  31-May-17 £431.89
Kersten Power unit Sweeper/Weed Brush 1-Aug-17 £14,875.90
Transit Caged Tipper 12-July -17 Lease 
Transit Caged Tipper 8-Dec-16 Lease
Transit Caged Tipper 08-Dec-16 Lease
Transit Caged Tipper 04-Aug-17 Lease
Transit Caged Tipper 04-Aug-17 Lease
Movano Tail Lift 19-Apr-17 Lease
Goupil G5 Electric Vehicle 02-Feb-17 Lease

Contract Service Review

Grass Cutting

The grass cutting season of 2017 commenced with a new fleet of ride-on mowers specifically for 
Highway verge works (Category G4). The introduction of the new mowers was part of idverde’s asset 
replacement programme and was in line with the planned timetable. This element of the contract is 
very challenging due to the high quantity of works, particularly given its sensitivity to climatic 
conditions which can quickly prevent achievement of contract requirements.

The season commenced in March with an unexpectedly dry spring. This assisted the staff, some of 
whom were new, to be able to familiarise themselves with their new equipment and also the revised 
rounds generated by the Dynamic Routing System (Acorn). As normal with UK weather this didn’t 
continue however and the unpredicted dry spring tuned into a wet summer with ongoing wet 
periods from July to October. Despite the non-favourable climate the grass cutting season continued 
successfully with cuts being completed within schedule without the assistance of the outside 
support that had been required in previous years.

Shrubs & Hedges

As part of the ongoing improvements, hard pruning was undertaken during the winter shrub bed 
visit along with further utilisation of mulch and herbicides to aid weed control. The reductions made 
in previous years gave an advantage in the ongoing maintenance and aesthetic of hedges and 
shrubs. Through dialogue with the Contract Management Team (CMT), a cost-effective programme 
of herbicide control was used in the EHDC District in preference to mulching, which was contained to 
higher profile areas only.

The wet summer increased the speed and amount of growth of vegetation and a number of areas 
were identified as being of high priority both for health and safety reasons and due to concerns from 
residents. Idverde’s System Analyst was able to reroute works programmes to accommodate these 
priority areas with operational advice from the management team.

Vegetation Control



idverde Year 6 JESC Report – Commercially Confidential 5

The control of hard surface weeds was undertaken with a continuous rolling application of herbicide. 
We have found this to be more successful than the twice per annum application detailed in the 
Contract Specification. The control and removal of moss continued to be challenging with the wet 
climate that we experienced and also the restricted number of products available to the industry. In 
August, we purchased a more powerful Kersten Pedestrian power unit that has attachments for such 
works and will complement the current methods used.

Green Hit Squad

The introduction in 2016 of the Green Hit Squad as a trial proved to be beneficial. This resource not 
only undertook the ad hoc works raised by the CMT but was also flexible enough to react to priority 
works and to be able to commence future core works before they were implemented into the 
contract therefore alleviating potential cost in bringing areas up to maintainable standard.

The use of this resource is regularly discussed and monitored jointly by idverde and the CMT to 
ensure maximum benefit to the contract in both service delivery and financial terms. 

Cleansing

Key improvements were made to cleansing activities during 2017 as a result of the incorporation of 
the Cleansing data into the Acorn system. In the past we have had difficulties due to the huge 
volume of data, but the Acorn project team worked with the developers of the system to streamline 
this. By passing on clear routing and asset information to the Cleansing teams the servicing of litter 
bins was achieved in a more regular programme as per the frequencies detailed within the 
specification. This identified bins that required a higher or lower frequency of visit to maintain 
standards; consequently a review was undertaken and frequencies changed accordingly to meet the 
litter disposal standards required in each particular area. The Acorn programming also identified 
additional labour resource required and the number of geographical cleansing zones was increased 
from six to eight as a result of both this and the increase in the Authorities’ assets, particularly litter 
bins.

The collection of leaves in the autumn received few complaints with a dedicated resource allocated 
to areas not covered within the contract. An additional HGV Sweeper was purchased to supplement 
the existing one, with the second vehicle being utilised in the EHDC area. 

Re-investment in commercial vehicles continued as part of the rolling programme with new 
replacement vehicles all being fitted with bin lifting equipment.  To accommodate the continual 
demands of fly-tip clearance the new vehicles for this task were fitted with tail-lifts to overcome the 
issues of manual handling and also to enable a more responsive service.

The use of electric-powered vehicles was reviewed and although found not to be suitable for 
Cleansing duties, further investment was made into a new vehicle for Horticultural works in 
Winchester City Centre. This allowed for a quieter, less intrusive approach to works in this highly 
populated area.



idverde Year 6 JESC Report – Commercially Confidential 6

Cleansing of car parks has again been challenging due to the nature and usage of the sites, 
particularly in City Centre locations. The dedicated operative resource continued at Chesil Multi-
storey and was also expanded to other areas of the city to extend the level of service. A review of a 
number of car parks was undertaken with the CMT and variations raised to bring the service level in 
line with the requirements of each site. 

As with the Green service of the contract, the Cleansing service continued to benefit from two ad 
hoc works teams. A rolling programme of litter picking operations was set up to keep various 
heavily-littered areas within the standards required. In the past these areas have been the topic of 
many negative views and complaints, but it is positive to report that this year has seen a vast 
reduction in such complaints. 

The sweeping and litter clearance of the main trunk roads continued in 2017 as per previous years.  
A number of Traffic Management companies have provided their services to assist idverde with 
these works and the network of such partners provides a comprehensive resource at times of high 
demand.  

During March 2017 the “Great British Spring Clean” was rolled out across the country. This was an 
opportunity for individuals, community groups, charities, sports clubs, business, and local authorities 
to get outdoors, get active and help clear up the rubbish that lies around us. As with similar 
Community projects idverde was very keen to be involved from the outset and not only joined forces 
with the Client but also directly with a large number of groups and individuals to ensure that this 
was a great success in the East Hampshire and Winchester Districts. idverde contributed by suppling 
safety and cleaning equipment with complimentary resources to collect litter accumulated by the 
various participants. 

Environment, Quality, Health & Safety



idverde Year 6 JESC Report – Commercially Confidential 7

The company continues to focus on providing a safe environment for all staff, customers and 
stakeholders. During the period in question idverde had two Reportable Incidents under RIDDOR.

No. Near misses 87

No. Minor accidents 6

No. Over 7 day injuries 2

No. Major injuries 0

The company’s internal QHSE team continues to undertake regular visits to the depots and sites as 
part of its own internal procedures and also undertakes formal audits. There is ongoing focus on 
encouraging the reporting of Near Misses with regular informal Tool Box Talks taking place in 
addition to formal QHSE meetings with dedicated workforce representatives.

Financial Performance

The company’s ongoing commitment to this contract was evidenced by its considerable investment 
in new vehicles and equipment and in ongoing system updates as well as the additional resource 
that was put in place for both support and operational functions. Staff headcount deployed was in 
excess of anticipated levels at various times of the year.

Acorn

2017 saw the fruition of the Acorn system as its continued use and development led to a more 
comprehensive delivery of the service. The introduction of the System Analyst position in March 
2017 provided support for the operational managers and supervisors which enabled them to focus 
further on the core service. The implementation of this role allowed for a more local ownership of 
the System (with the highly technical matters being dealt with by the project team). The IT 
infrastructure at the depot was improved by idverde to improve connection speed which in the past 
had been an issue. The Acorn project team continued to offer support on an as-and-when-required 
basis and to work closely with the developers to improve the system. The client Log-in enabled 
“Live” data and progress reports to be viewed with an ongoing increase in information being made 
available as the system matured.

PQMS

As part of the suite of functions available from the Acorn system, Performance Quality Monitoring 
System (PQMS) was introduced. This tool randomly generated 45 assets to be inspected every week 
with each asset being inspected and graded against a scale based on the contract specification. The 
undertaking of the inspections is open to all involved and joint inspections have been undertaken 
with the view to increasing to full partnership inspection of the contract. Live data from the 



idverde Year 6 JESC Report – Commercially Confidential 8

inspections is viewable via the client’s portal and the average scoring for the contract from when the 
system was introduced in April 2017 can be seen in the screenshot below.



East Hampshire and Winchester Joint Waste              
Contract

Annual Service Report October 2016 –
September 2017

Prepared by Biffa Municipal Ltd



Contents

1. Contract Overview

2. Health and Safety Performance

3. Management Staff

4. Operational Staff

5. Social Value

6. Refuse and Recycling Collections

7. Garden waste Collection Service

8. Clinical Collection Services

9. Ongoing Projects

10. Summary

11. The Year Ahead

Prepared by Biffa Municipal Ltd



1. Contract Overview

2016 – 2017 has been another challenging year for all concerned on the contract.

Service levels have been consistently high throughout this difficult period, the local team, working 
with the CMT, have also managed to complete some very demanding projects without an adverse 
effect on the performance. These are detailed later in this report. 

There is an ongoing commitment from all on the local team to continue to develop partnership 
working and have made inroads to this end although the contract has suffered and continues to 
suffer with recruiting and retaining staff which has resulted in some meetings not being able to go 
ahead as no-one from Biffa was available.

2. Health and Safety Performance

In the current year we have completed 596 Monitoring Checks on the crews which highlight day to 
day Health and Safety, performance and other issues which can then be dealt with pro-actively 
whilst there. This is a decrease on the previous year and is below the ideal target this is a reflection 
of the challenging year on the contract which has meant the supervisors have spent a large amount 
of their time driving rounds rather than supervising.

There has been an increase in vehicles accidents compared to the previous year. Full investigations 
are carried out on all accidents and incidents, including support from the SHEQ and Fleet support 
teams, and any identified actions and or disciplinary investigations are carried out diligently. The 
increase is a reflection in the high usage/turnover of agency/temporary drivers on the contract.
Stephen Hanby (Contract Performance Analyst) has passed his Transport Manager Certificate of 
Professional Competence qualification to ensure we continue to be fully compliant. 

Personal accidents resulting in injury has stayed static with the same amount of accidents being 
reported but they were less serious with no RIDDOR’s (2 in 15/16 contract year) being reported over 
the same period. 

3. Management Staff

Wayne Goodwin as Business Manager has continued to strive to improve the daily challenges that 
are faced on the contract and while some successes have been implemented there continues to be 
frustrations experienced. Unfortunately Wayne has now decided that he will no longer be able to 
fulfil this role moving forward so we are currently looking for a replacement

Stephen Hanby has now settled into the role of Contract and Performance Analyst and has been 
involved in some excellent partnership working in regards to streamlining the digital data shared 
between EH&W and Biffa, as well as cleansing the Spring Board system. Stephen will run the 
contract whilst a new Business Manager is sourced.

The contract Supervision team has had a challenging year and have spent a fair proportion of their 
available working time filling in on the rounds to prioritise the front line services and the fact that, 
green waste service aside, there has been minimal impact visible to residents is a testament to how 
hard they have worked this year.  

All supervisors have attended various training throughout the year including IOSH and 1st aid as well 
as internal training courses and we have one more supervisor than in the tender document as we 
agreed at last years JESC. 

Prepared by Biffa Municipal Ltd



Operational Staff

This has been a challenging year for recruitment, as have all of the previous ones since we started 
the contract. We are currently operating with anywhere between 8 and 10 agency on a daily basis 
and struggle to retain staff and drivers in particular resulting in a high turnover and increased vehicle  
accidents as they settle into the role. Although this is not for a want of trying and we are constantly 
looking at other recruitment options within the district to hire staff direct rather than agency usage.

One of the main reasons given for leaving is the length of the current day and the pressures 
experienced during the day. This should be resolved as part of the on-going discussions regarding 
the re-scheduling of the rounds. 

Driver CPC training continues and all relevant staff have received this year’s modules, at no cost to 
the individual.

We are continuing with the driver apprentice scheme and have identified existing loaders for 
development on the upcoming course in 2017/18.  

5. Social Value

Currently Biffa employs 100 staff across the partnership area and whilst 89% of the staff live in this 
area, 99% live within Hampshire.

Biffa have continued to utilise outlets for the environmentally friendly disposal of all our end of life 
and damaged containers and will continue to do so for the length of the contract, or as long as these 
options are available.

6. Refuse and Recycling Collections

The Refuse and Recycling collection service is still to a very high standard and in the contract year in 
question we made 7,883,336 collections with only 7,136 missed bins reported. This equates to a 
99.91% success rate.

We continue to hit our KPI targets and have only failed these on 1 occasion. We have failed 8 KPI’s 
out of 60 during the last 12 months these 8 failures were between AWC collections (6) that has a 
threshold of 19 missed per hundred thousand and clinical (2) that has a threshold of 2 misses per 
calendar month. Whilst it has been reported that we have failed a number times on the SPF during 
the last contract year, we have identified that the threshold used by the CMT is lower than that 
approved by the JESC in June 2014. Using the correct threshold we have only failed the SPF once but 
have not failed the service KPI’s.

7. Garden waste Collection Service

The Garden Waste service is constantly evolving and is now at the maximum contracted numbers in 
East Hants district, we also continue to see more members transferring over to wheeled bin 
collections, all of which do have a very positive impact on the staff and reduce the Health and safety 
risks associated with the continued increased usage of Garden Waste collection in sacks in 
Winchester district. This service has seen a 10% increase in material collected compared to 15/16 
contract year using the same available resources. This service is under pressure to maintain the 
standards it has set recently and the 10% increase equates to approx. 580 Tonnes and this will only 
increase in the future meaning this service will struggle next year without significant changes being 
implemented to assist the crews.   

Prepared by Biffa Municipal Lt



Biffa are still maintaining the level of vehicles and crews on the service past the usual cutting season 
due to the particularly clement weather so that this does not cause problems.

8. Clinical Collection Services

This is the only service on which we have failed the KPI over the last year; and due to the very nature 
of this service this is being dealt with as a matter of urgency. To put this into context we have 
recorded 58 misses over the 12 month period; however the ad-hoc and personal way that this 
service operates there are a certain amount of problems expected and when these do they are 
resolved as a matter of urgency.

9. Ongoing Projects

During the contract year we have, in co-operation with the CMT, completed some significant 
projects:

Trial of zonal bin deliveries, ongoing.

The re-route project has been extensively expanded on compared to previous data supplied. 

Moving forward we are still looking at the multiple bins that are presented on the refuse collection 
service and have agreed to postpone the Green Waste audit in the Winchester district until a 
decision has been made on whether that service will change in the future, this is still waiting to be 
implemented. 

10. Summary

2016-2017 has been a hard year but with some progress evident in certain areas. Recruitment 
continues to be an ongoing problem which we need to resolve and we are constantly looking at 
different options to improve the situation in the coming year.

Biffa remain committed to the East Hants and Winchester contract and are continuing to bring in 
improvements as and when they are identified.

We will continue to drive through performance improvements, with a commitment to a target of 
zero accidents and zero missed collections. Whilst challenging, it is possible, and is the most efficient 
way of providing the contract’s services.

11. The Year Ahead

Meetings still continue to take place to discuss the authority options for the future service and 
whether a contract extension is one of these.

Once the way that the authority want to provide the Green Waste service in Winchester has been 
agreed then Biffa will work with the CMT to ensure that any changes are implemented with as little 
disruption to the residents as possible, however this will be a major project as Biffa intend to 
implement the new schedules ASAP and as such the CMT and Biffa will need to make sure that 
sufficient resources are available.

Prepared by Biffa Municipal Ltd





NON EXEMPT

             
EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL & WINCHESTER CITY 
COUNCIL

EHDC & WCC Joint Environmental Services 
Committee

20th Nov  2017

JESC 2018/19 Draft Budget

Steve Cooper – Finance Business Partner

FOR DECISION 

Portfolios: Cllr Tony Costigan (EHDC, Commercial Commissioning),
                    Cllr Jan Warwick  (WCC, Environment, Health & Wellbeing))

Key Decision: No

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To advise the JESC of the draft 2018/19 budget.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee approves the draft 2018/19 JESC budget as set 
out in Appendix 1 of this report.

3.0 Detail

3.1 The JESC draft budget for 2018/19 has been compiled based on 
budget submissions received at East Hampshire. It also includes the 
growth items described elsewhere on this JESC agenda.  A summary 
is attached to this report. It should be noted that the EHDC 2018/19 
budget is yet to be approved at Cabinet level so these figures could still 
be subject to change.

3.2 The budget has been prepared using a zero based budget approach 
and CPI increases applied to all contract costs.

3.3 The overall JESC position shows an increase of £439k of which £197k 
relates to East Hampshire and £242k to Winchester.  The key budget 
movements are described below. 



3.4 Biffa Contract Budgets – this shows an increase of £253k overall, 
broken down into EHDC £124k increase & Winchester £129k, this  
includes:

CPI Inflation increase of 4 .5% has been included in the 18/19 
budget. In addition the budget includes a property escalator that 
includes the uplift for 1-500 extra new build properties. 

There remains some uncertainty around current chargeable 
property numbers, this piece of work is currently ongoing and 
could have an estimated base cost of £120k per annum. (Not 
shown in this Draft Budget) 

3.5 ID Verde Street Cleaning and Open Spaces Budgets – This contract 
shows an increase of £218k. EHDC £105k & WCC £113. Again, this 
includes CPI inflation of 4.5%.

3.6 Public Convenience Cleaning Contract – Increased by CPI 
inflationary uplift. 

3.7 Joint Client Team – Costs for the Contract monitoring team have risen 
year on year by the pay award alone with no additional staff.

3.8 Customer Service Centre - CSC costs have increased again only by 
the national pay award and no additional staff. 

3.9 Income from the sale of glass and other recyclables – Year on year 
there is a slight reduction in the budgeted income for glass & textiles, 
this is however offset by a higher expectancy of revenue from DMR 
resulting in a broadly neutral net position year on year. There is a small 
expected increase in green waste licences in EHDC although this 
service is now at capacity. Further investment would be required if this 
ceiling is intended to be increased.

4.0 Implications 

4.1 Resources: The resource implications are as set out in this report and 
will need to be considered by the respective Cabinets of both Councils 
if approved by JESC.

4.2 Legal: There are no legal implications from this report.

4.3 Strategy: The proposals in this report are in line with the budget 
strategies of both councils.  The delivery of services contributes to both 
Environmental Sustainability and Public Service excellence. 

4.4 Risks: The key risk is the instability of the recyclables market and the 
affect on income levels. It is therefore sensible to take a prudent 
approach to income predictions.  



4.5 Communications: There are no significant communication issues from 
this report. 

Appendices:

Appendices 1 – Draft 2018/19 JESC Budget

Contact Officer: Stephen Cooper
Job Title: Finance Business Partner
Telephone: 02392 446613
E-Mail: stephen.cooper@easthants.gov.uk





JESC EHDC WCC JESC EHDC WCC

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Biffa

Core Contract costs 3775 2041 1734 4002 2159 1843

Green waste Collection 593 246 347 619 252 367

Private collections 1 1 0 1 1 0

Ad Hoc works - Biffa 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 4369 2288 2081 4622 2412 2210

ID Verde

Core Contract costs 2633 1048 1585 2796 1103 1693

Growth Items 80 40 40 135 90 45

ad Hoc works - TLG 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 2713 1088 1625 2931 1193 1738

Wettons

Core Contract & Consumables 183 61 122 184 62 122

Total 183 61 122 184 62 122

Non Contract costs

CSC 120 60 60 122 61 61

Contract Monitoring team 565 244 321 578 249 327

Total 685 304 381 700 310 388

Income

Recharge from Brendan Care 0 0 0 -1 -1 0

Sale of Recyclables -782 -360 -422 -784 -362 -422

Sale of Green waste Licences -420 -420 0 -450 -450 0

Additional Green Bags -15 0 -15 -15 0 -15

-1202 -780 -437 -1235 -813 -437

Total 6,063        2,657        3,391       6,502       2,854       3,633       

JESC 2018/2019 Proposed budget for approval




	Agenda
	5 Contract Management Team Annual Report Year 6
	Appendix A  Envionmental Services - Updated Service Plan 2017-18 v4
	Appendix B Fly tipping map of locations EHDC area only 2016-17
	Appendix B Fly tipping map of locations EHDC area only 2016-17 (2)
	Appendix C ANNUAL PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD - November 2017 SW
	Appendix D idverde East Hants and Winchester Annual Report - Year 6 2016 17 SUBMITTED VERSION
	Appendix E Biffa East Hants and Winchester Joint Waste Contract Board Report 2017 v2

	6 Joint Environmental Services Committee 2018/19 Draft Budget Report
	Appendix 1 for Item 2 18_19 Budget Summary appendix


